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2015 26
km
0.6
-19 0.9
20-39 1.2
40 1.8
N/A 2.1
2015 26
km 0.12
km
(D)
0.6
- ( ) 0.9
-10(10 ) 1.2
10-15(15 ) 20 1.8
15 40 2.1
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018
12 *
32 36 40 47 51 58
« )
) ( 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.4 3.7 4.2
( ) 909 991 1,076 1,233 1,365 777
*2018 12 31
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4
o) (2018 12 31 )
/
/
00s 10 13 23.149,000,000  71.83
( SIHC )
2016 19 10,000 71.83
( SIICHCL )
50,000 71.83
2017 12 18
( SHCHIC )
5 1 ®)
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(@) (2018 12 31 )
/
/
97.5
( ) 1981 10 30
HH1 100
( HHI ) 2005
- 100
1992
HHI * 100
( HHI ) 2010 11 16
HHI 100
( HHI ) 2003 11 21
( ) 100
( ) 2003
( ) 97.5
20,000
2003 12
100
20,000
( ) 1994 16
* SIH
HHI HHI HHI
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1988 27 16D
2003 17 4,899,000,000
W 702,000,000 (471,000,000 )
2008 30
3 €H)
2018 12 31 ( ) 3 ( " N
2018
30 12 31
24 2%
40.8 41.3
10.4 10.9
( ) 779,277 298,525
( )

60/217



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

2018 12 31

2018 29
2017 11 2018
2018 10 16 - -

€Y
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2018 12 31
2018 30 2018 12 31
EBITDA EBITDA
(D 1,499 1,309  (463)  (325) 521 743 663 (232)  (164) 267
663 580  (229)  (213) 138 377 320 (126)  (106) 83
2,162 1,889  (692)  (538) 659 1,120 983  (358)  (270) 355
18 7
(34) an
() )
() )
(15) (10)
/( g( 644 345
/( g( 22 @n
/ 666 308
(10) )
656 304
(€))
2018
2018 12 31 ( 2018 ) 2018
2018 12
2018 ( )
11.2 66 34
(
( ) ) 355
2018 10 (
) ( ) 345
2018 37
304
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Ogoooood
48
2017 10 2027 30
45
(i) HZM (2018 10 )
(1)
100
2018 12 31 140
( 600 2019
)
2020
HHI
2018 2018 2018 2018
30 12 31 30 12 31
691 140 79 81
13 3an -
699 153 450 81
HHI 249 72
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(HHI )
2018 2018 2018 2018
30 12 31 30 12 31
219 203
4,274 4,080 - 1,103 1,128
182 190 - 113 109
26 24 - 731 675
505 559
4,701 4,497 2,461 2,480
2,240 2,017
(HHI )
2018 2018 2018 2018
30 12 31 30 12 31
44 76 3,303 3,078
6,050 5,940 418 430
190 183 314 355
418 430
19 14
6,721 6,643 4,035 3,863
2,686 2,780
2018 2018 2018 2018
30 12 31 30 12 31
6,946 6,424
5,148 4,839
27 30
12,121 11,293 12,121 11,293
5,175 4,869
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140

/(

674

1,002

ooooOoog
2018 30 2018 12 31
¢ - )
2018 30 2018 12 31
(36,180) (14,107)
929,784 456,588
(673,866) (1,001,909)
/( 219,738 (559,428)
930 911
18
660
457 449
1,000
263 (2018 30 254 )
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31

2016

2018 12 31
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@)
@
(€©))
( )
140
2018 12 31
( ) 140 (2018 30 691
) 0.05 (2018 30 0.22 )
2018
2011 30
2012 12
351 2013 30
2016
20
912
2018 12 31
(1,128 109
3,762
) 4,999 (2018 30 5,259 )

(a) 99.8 (2018 30 99.8 ) 0.2 (2018 30 0.2 )
(b) 75 (2018 30 77 ) 23 (2018 30 21 ) (2018

30 )
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( ) 2003 23
2018 12 31
O)
2003 25
(i)
2003 25
(i) HHI
2004 2004 21 COFTEC
(iv) HHI 2004
14
(iii) 2004
(v)  HHI 2005
(iii) 2004
(vi) HHI 2008
(iii) 2004
(vii) HHI 2013 11
(iii) 2004
viii)HHI 14 1
(viii) 20 2
(iii) 2004
(ix) HHI 2015
18

(iii) 2004
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2015

) 2004
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@
(2018 12 31 )
10,000,000, 000 3,081,690, 283 6,918,309,717
(2018 12 31 )
( 0.10 ) 3,081,690,283
3,081,690, 283
@
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(D)

(D)

)

120,000,000

3,081,690,283

12,000,000

170,160,000

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821

®
2012 10 31
2013 31
2013 31
2013 30
2013 10 31
2013 11 30
2013 12 31
2014 31
2014 28
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 31
2014 30
2014 10 31
2014 11 30
2014 12 31
2015 31
2015 28
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 31
2015 30
2015 10 31
2015 11 30
2015 12 31

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,369,836,821
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(D) )
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 29 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 11 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2016 12 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 11 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2017 12 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 11 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
2018 12 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,369,836,821
(1)120,000,000 ( )
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)
(2018 12 31 )
() 0 Q)
93 3,056,359,972 99.18
6,327 25,330,311 0.82
6,420 3,081,690,283 100.00
®)
(018 12 31 )
)
)
V61110
I 2,213,449,666 71.83
A 2,213,449, 666 71.83
(¢H)
2,213,449, 666 71.83
10) 18
@D 33| 305,087,338 9.90
@ 33| 305,087,338 9.90
8 I
( ) 291,207,411 9.45
8 | 291,207,411 9.45
22 7 7 -
(O))
2,809,744,415 91.18
(€D)
( SHICHIC )
SIICHIC
( STICHCL ) 100 SFO
15 SIICHCL  SIICHIC
(2)SHICHCL ( SIHC

)

100 SIHC SIICHCL SFO 15
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OooooOodd
€)) (8VD) ( GBL )
( ) 100 GBL SFO 15
() ( ) ( CTLIHK
) (
CTIHCL ) 100 CTIHCL CTLIHK SFO 15
1 1 )
( )  SIHC
2018 12 31 9.9
11.615472 ( 1.17328 )
100
2019 30 2019 2019
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¢
(D
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 ( 2)
30 30 30 30 30 12 31
4.15 4.09 3.90 4.85 4.78 4.15
59 58 55 69 68 59
3.52 3.76 3.42 3.83 4.78 3.95
50 53 48 54 68 56
@ 2003
(2)2018 12 31
@)
(D
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
-( 2) -( 2 4.23 4.02 4.02 4.06
- - 60 57 57 58
-( 2) -( 2) 3.98 3.81 3.86 3.91
- - 56 54 55 55
@ 2003
0 2018
2018 18
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(
49 )(1970 5 )
2018 11 ( )
1992
MBA
2002
2005
) 2009
(
2013
2016
)
(56 )(1963
2018 11 ( )
1985
1993
(
CPC
( )
2002 10
)
( )
2004 11
(
)

2002 11

)
( )(
2002
)
2017
9 )
(
cPC
(
2006

771217
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2001

)
(
(
1987
1991 12
1998 12
(
) )
2011
(
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49 )(1970
2018 11 ( )
1995
)( )
) 2002
( )
( )
11
(43 )(1975 )
2018 11 (
2002
1998
) 2005
)
(
( ) 2006
( )( (
(
A000019 B200019) )
(

(
1997 10
(
1998
2018 EMBA
152)
)
)(
2016 11 2018

OooooOodd
) (
(
2009
2012
) 2014
( )
2004
(
(

(Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited)(

548)

781217

( 600548) )
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ooooood
(35 )(1983 12 23 )
2018 12 2006 e
2013
( )
) (
)
2016 10
(Taiping Investment Holdings Company Limited)
oCT
( )
( )
( )
(Taiping Financial Tower projects)
(47 )(971 12 12 )
2019 19 1994
(
) ( )
( ( ) ) 1997
( A000002)
( 2202) 1997 2006
( )( )(
( )
2007
2008
( )
2011
( )( (

) 2019
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(P)(44 )(1974 11 10 )
2011 2015
26 2018 11
( BEA )
2004 2009 BEA 2009
2014 BEA

(Towngas China Company Limited)

(China Overseas Land & Investment Limited)

(Chief Executive®s Council of Advisers on Innovation & Strategic Development of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region) (Hong Kong
Trade Development Council) (Financial Services Development Council)

(Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee)

(Hong Kong - Europe Business Council)
(Hong Kong - Japan Business Co-operation Committee)
(Asian Financial Cooperation Association)
(Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service
Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen)
(Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
(Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales)
(Treasury Markets Association)

MBA
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oooooog
(49 ) (1970 9 )
2018 11
26
1992
2006 EMBA (Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) (Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants) (American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants)
(Hopson Development Holdings Limited)( 754)
(Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited)( 1047)
( ) (Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited)( 93)
(SBS, JP)(68 )(1950 12 )
2018 11
(Tony Kan & Co., Solicitors &
Notaries) 1982 (Supreme Court of Hong
Kong) (Supreme Court of
England and Wales) (Supreme Court of the Australian
Capital Territory) (Supreme Court of the

Republic of Singapore)

(Guangdong
Committee) 1985 2011 (Sha Tin District Council)
1999 (Regional Council)
1997
1988 (Heung Yee Kuk)
( (Town Planning Board) (Housing Authority) (Building
Committee) ) (Election Committee)
(Man Wah Holdings Limited)( 1999) 2013
2016 29 (Nameson Holdings Limited)(
1982) 2016 12
2017 12 29 DBG
(DBG Technology Co., Ltd.)( 300735)
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( )
(Midland Holdings Limited)( 1200) 1994 10 2004
2014
2016 10 2016 10
1C&l (Midland 1C&I Limited)( 459)
2015 2016 2017 2018 30 2018 12 31
( )
17,639,000 20,226,000 15,359,000 10,193,000
2,863,000
2018 30 2018 12 31
( 485 ) MPF
30,000
2018 12 31
MPF 420,000 (2018

30 838,000 )
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QY 2013 10 22 (
) 2023 10 21
®)
®) (
)
/
(
)
10 12
308,169,028 ( 10
)
10
@ ( )( )
(®)
©
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(A) 2007 25 ( )
15
(10

) ®)
®) (

)

(
)
10 (

(©) 2018 12 31

(2018 30 )
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o
2018 12 31 A.5.1
A.5.6
A.5.1

A.5.6
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3.13
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2019
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Q) (i) (iii)

2018 27 2018 12

2019

2018 12 2019
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ooooooo
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2018
/
2018
N/A N/A
(2018 27 ) N/A N/A
(2018 12 ) N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

P
(SBS JP)

(Companies Registry of Hong Kong) (Guide on Directors® Duties) /
( ) (Guide for

Independent Non-Executive Directors)
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o O O
(2018 27 ) © © ©
(2018 12 ) © © ©
P o) [¢)
(SBS JP)
/
( )

2018 15
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2018 12 31

1,300

10

1,310

€0S0( )
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(ONT0)

(
)
(a
(b)
©
Y 2 2 Wil Mo E
/ (kS & OonTiiedt) \
1 Bl BT Lis kUK TERENLT B U S 55 D 53 A
VAZ—ROT 77— | EWAe Y A7 ORIE
= e
\ ) %7 DEMAIN /
B L OWIEE ORI
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68
116 O
(i)
( )
13.51(2)
@)

( C DI C I C DI (GEED))
987(15,950) 335(5,414) 153(2,472) 9(145)
350(5, 656) 0(0) 370(5,979) 0(0)
1,337(21,606) 335(5,414) 523(8,452) 9(145)
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2018 12 31
2018 30 2018 12 31
17,983 291 5,117 82
(108) @ (154) @
(34,404) (556) (16,658) (269)
41) @ (684) 1)
724,433 11,707 340,188 5,497
707,863 11,439 327,800 5,207
(41.835) (676) (19.650) (317)
10 666,028 10,763 308, 159 4,980
417 7
(7,281) (118) 149 2
658,747 10,645 308,725 4,989
656,197 10,604 304,046 4,013
9.831 159 4,113 67
666,028 10,763 308,159 4,980
648,916 10,486 304,612 4,923
9.831 159 4,113 66
658,747 10,645 308,725 4,989
12 0.2129 3.44 0.0987 1.59
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ooo0000
2018 12 31
2018 30 2018 12 31
15 4,851,836 78,406 4,797,525 77,528
16 11,100 179
16 4,785 77
17 84 1 1,291 21
4,856,705 78,484 4,809,916 77,728
1,569 25 678 1
18 75,849 1,226 14 0
19 691,461 11,174 140,087 2,264
768,879 12,425 140,779 2,275
5,625,584 90,909 4,950,695 80,003
20 270,603 4,373 270,603 4,373
4,877,469 78,820 4,568,631 73,829
5,148,072 83,193 4,839,234 78,202
27,219 440 30,233 489
5,175,291 83,633 4,869,467 78,601
22 69,310 1,119 69,888 1,129
10,027 162 11,340 183
370,956 5,995
380,983 6,157 11,340 183
450,293 7,276 81,228 1,312
5,625,584 90,909 4,950,695 80,003
691,461 11,174 140,087 2,264
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3
2018 12 31
( )
2017 270,603 _ 3,104,759 114,710 (499,337) 2,535,600 _ 5,526,335 30,826 5,557,161
(7,281) (7,281) (7,281)
656,197 656,197 9,831 666,028
(7,281) __ 656,197 648,916 9,831 658, 747
(7,121) (7,121) (7,121)
13 (387,790) 80,724  (712,992) (1,020,058) (1,020,058)
(13,438)  (13,438)
2018 30 270,603 2,716,969 107,589 (425,894) 2,478,805 5,148,072 27,219 5,175,291
4,856 4,856 4,856
2018 270,603 _ 2,716,969 107,589 4,856 (425,894) 2,478,805 5,152,928 27,219 5,180,147
417 417 417
149 149 149
304,046 304,046 4,113 308,159
417 149 304,046 304,612 4,113 308,725
13 (379,280) 65,419  (304,445)  (618,306) (618,306)
(1,099) (1,099)
2018 12 31 270,603 _ 2,337,689 107,589 5,273 (360,326) 2,478,406 4,839,234 30,233 4,869,467
( )
2017 1,373 50,173 1,854 (8,069) 40,975 89,306 498 89,804
(118) (118) (118)
10,604 10,604 159 10,763
(118) 10,604 10,486 159 10,645
(115) (115) (115)
13 (6,267) 1,305 (11,522)  (16,484) (16,484)
(217) (217)
2018 30 4,373 43,906 1,739 (6,882) 40,057 83,193 440 83,633
78 78 78
2018 4,373 43,906 1,739 78 (6,882) 40,057 83,271 440 83,711
7 7 7
2 2 2
4,914 4,914 67 4,981
7 2 4,914 4,923 67 4,990
13 (6,129) 1,057 (4,920) (9,992) (9,992)
(18) (18)
201812 31 4,373 37,777 1,739 85 (5,823) 40,051 78,202 489 78,691
2009 30
2018 30 0.10 2018 30
2017 30 0.10 313,861,000
2018 30 307,066,000
379,280,000 2018 30
387,790,000 65,419,000 2018 30
80,724,000
48 2017 2027 30
45
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Oooooooo
2018 12 31
2018 30 2018 12 31

707,863 11,439 327,809 5,297
(600) 10) (600) (10)
(18,504) (299) (7,128) (115)
667 11

(128) @
1,389 22 2,826 46
108 2 154 2
(724,433) (11,706) (340,188) (5,497)
(34,305) (554) (16,460) (266)
(628) (10) 891 14

10 0
(1,257) (20) 1,462 25
(36, 180) (584) (14,107) 227)
(100) 0) (1,361) 2)

319 5
911,124 14,724 449,120 7,258
18,441 298 8,829 142
929,784 15,025 456,588 7,378
265,957 4,298
(265,957) (4,298)
(667) 11)
(660,428) (10,673) (1,000,143) (16,162)
(13,438) (217) (1,099) (18)
(673,866) (10,890) (1,001,909) (16,191)
219,738 3,551 (559,428) (9,040)
469,067 7,580 691,461 11,174
2,656 43 8,054 130
691,461 11,174 140,087 2,264
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2018 30 12

IFRS

IFRS 15
IFRIC 22
IFRS

IFRS

IAS 28
IAS 40

30 12 31

IFRS

IFRS IFRS

IFRS
IFRS 2014 2016

IFRS
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IFRS
IFRS IFRS
IFRS ECL
IFRS IFRS 2018
ECL
2018 30 2018
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
2018 IFRS IAS 39
( )
FvTOCI

2018 30 1AS 39 4,785 69,310
IFRS

() (4,785) 4,785

(D) 5,815 959 4,856
2018 10,600 70,269 4,856

FVTOCI
IFRS 4,785,000
FvTOCI 1AS 39
4,856,000 2018 FvTOCI
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IFRS IFRS
IFRS IFRS

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 23
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 10
IAS 28
1AS
I1AS
IAS 19
IAS 28
IFRS IFRS 2015 2017

2019

2021

2020
2020

IFRS IFRS
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IAS 36
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FVTOCI

IFRS
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FvToct
FVTOCI

IFRS
IFRS
ECL ECL

ECL ECL
12 ECL ECL 12

12 ECL
ECL ECL
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)
©

ECL
ECL

ECL

ECL

ECL

2018 IFRS
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oOoOooodn
2018 12 31 4,797,525,000 2018 30 4,851,836,000
2018 12 31 340,188,000 2018
30 724,433,000
326,003,000 2018 30
618,494,000
2018 30
2,091,000 2018 30 12,228,000
(i)
2018 12 31 4,797,525,000 2018 30 4,851,836,000
2018 12 31 340,188,000 2018

30 724,433,000
220,243,000 2018 30 207,590,000
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2018 30

EBITDA

1,498,636 1,308,583 (462,525) (324,885) 521,173
663,013 580,436 (229,783) (212,711) 137,942
2,161,649 1,889,019 (692,308) (537,596) 659,115
18,504

868

(34,512)

(41)

(60)

22,154

666,028
(9,831)

656,197

2018 12 31

EBITDA

742,973 663,212 (232,267) (164,147) 266,798
377,122 320,004 (126,133) (105,704) 88,167
1,120,095 983,216 (358,400) (269,851) 354,965
7,128

815

(16,812)

(684)

(60)

(37,193)

308,159
(4,113)

304,046

34,367,000 2018 30
23,543,000 2,826,000 2018 30
1,389,000
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ooooood
i
/
ii
iii

2018 30 2018 12 31
659,115 354,965
23,543 (34,367)
41,775 19,590
724,433 340,188
( )
2018 30 4,036 769 4,805 (4,805) 18,504 18,504
2018 12 31 3,247 502 3,749 (3,749) 7,128 7,128

FVTOCI

1,291,000 2018 30 84,000
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OooooOodd
7.
2018 30 2018 12 31
18,504 7,128
(1,389) (2,826)
FVTOCIH 600 600
128
140 215
17,983 5,117
8.
2018 30 2018 12 31
816,975 386,942
15
(92,542) (46,754)
(47,912) (25,452)
47,912 25,452
724,433 340,188
9.
2018 30 2018 12 31
EIT 52,740 20,114
22 (10,905) (464)
41,835 19,650
2018 12 31 EIT
20,054,000 2018 30
52,680,000
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2018 30 2018 12 31
707,863 327,809
25
2018 20 - 176,966 81,952
(90) (90)
(4,693) (1,835)
8,985 5,080
(181,108) (85,047)
41,775 19,590
41,835 19,650
10.
2018 30 2018 12 31
1,383 1,141
11 10,193 2,863
12,625 7,073
22,818 9,936
108 154
41 684
11.
2018 30 13
( )
2018 30 2018 12 31
a
b 36 195 231 87 656 743
c 36 195 231 87 637 724
d 36 195 231 87 637 724
e 108 108
f 26 26
g 330 330 184 184
h 75 75 184 184
i 70 70 170 170
j 213 1,194 1,407
K 180 955 1,135
1 148 2,881 13 3,042
n 148 2,452 13 2,613
n 291 291
o] 291 291
P 246 246
2,100 8,067 26 10,193 933 1,930 2,863
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a. 2018

11
2018 12 31
b. 2018 11
c. 2018 11
d. 2018 11
e. 2018 27
f. 2018 12
g. 2018 11
h. 2018 11
i. 2018 11
j. 2018 11 2018
k. 2018 11 2018
. 2018 11 2018
m. 2018 11 2018
n. 2018 11 2018
0. 2018 11 2018
p. 2018
2018 30
2018 30
2018 30 2018 12 31
1,041 1,146
127
15 16
1,183 1,162
2018 30 2018 12 31
1,000,000 2
1,000,001 1,500,000 1
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2018 30

12.

13.

2018 30

0.1160 14.24028

2018 30

0.0970 11.114551

2017 30

13.58986

2018 30

0.1000 11.4583
2017 30

0.1000 11.71540

2018 12 31

0.0990 11.615472
2018 30

0.0970 11.114551

2018 30

0.1000 11.4583

2018 12

OOooOoOoOoo
2018 12 31
2018 30 2018 12 31
656,197 304,046
2018 30 2018 12 31
3,081,600,283 3,081,600,283
2018 30 2018 12 31
356,796
2018 30
01160 356,196 304,445
2018 30 307,066 313,861
1,020,058 618,306
2018 30 298,924 305,087
308,169
607,093 305,087
31 0.0990 11.615472
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MPF

30,000

18

2018 12 31

MPF 420,000 2018 30
838,000
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OooooOodd
15.
2018 30 2018 12 31
2,020,789 2,020,789
2,520,218 2,520,218
1,408,699 1,401,142
(405,944) (431,396)
(1,526,581) (1,573,335)
4,017,181 3,937,418
2,449,500 2,449,500
(2,020,789) (2,020,789)
405,944 431,396
834,655 860, 107
4,851,836 4,797,525
2018 30 2018 12 31
( 50
4,899,002,000 50 50
)
1997 30
10 50 10
48 10 45
702,000,000 471,000,000
2008 30
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)
1,680,000,000
294,000,000
2003 17
6,715,000,000
1,175,500,000
2010
5,600,000,000
980,000,000
2013
2018 30 2018 12 31
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35

30

35

25

35

25

50
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588,000,000

2,351,000,000
25

1,960,000,000
25

4,899,000,000



2018

30

IFRS
2018 12 31
( )
2018 30 2018 12 31
400,152 380,621 418,117 366,346
7,384,044 12,026,226 7,056,333 11,806,442
7,784,196 12,406,847 7,474,450 12,172,788
436,463 88,212 400,345 151,943
50,000 50,000
53,335 35,774 54,339 27,781
539,798 123,986 504,684 179,724
(376,926)  (100,832) (397,472)  (107,648)
(3,991,043)  (6,593,121) (3,909,320)  (6,129,621)
(1,669,310) (1,720,214)
(233,631) _ (234,577) (203,958) _ (291,117)
(4,601,600) (8,597,840) (4,510,750) _(8,248,600)
(355,183) (13,000) (359,171) (26,500)
(158,742)
(4,813) (8,090) (5,748) (8.293)
(518,447) _ (281,503) (642,097) _ (303,282)
(1,037,185) __ (302,593) (1,007,016) __ (338,075)
2,685,209 _ 3,630,400 2,461,368 _ 3,765,837
45 50 45 50
1,208,344 1,815,200 3,023,544 1,107,616 1,882,919 2,990,535
957,080 36,557 993,637 910,671 36,212 946,883
834,655 834,655 860,107 860,107
2,165,424 2,686,412 4,851,836 2,018,287 2,779,238 4,797,525
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(
()
0
D)
16.
IFRS
2018
17.
2017
/
2018 30
2018 12 31
2017
/
2018 30
2018 12 31
2018 30
2018 12 31

(

)
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52,318,000

Ooooooog
)
2018 30 2018 12 31
3,330,301 1,326,026 1,651,051 754,243
60,718 16,286 51,708 1,171
3,391,019 1,342,312 1,702,759 755,414
(60,718) (16,286) (51,708) (1,171)
123,253 40,461 60,767 20,114
(48,623) (11,844) (19,230) (6,815)
(348,912)  (142,343) (258,282)  (100,262)
(78,298) (51,428) (62,330) (27,272)
(823,478)  (458,402) (413,018)  (251,576)
(155,378)  (313,030) (89,944)  (143,358)
(508,223) (97,069) (216,189) (58,733)
1,490,642 292,371 652,825 186,341
45 50 45 50

670,789 146,186 816,975 293,771 93,171 386,942

76,372,000 2018 30
2018 30
4,785,000 FVTOCI
FVTOCI
4,856,000
FVTOCI

873 4,618 5,491

100 100

(536) 27) (663)

337 4,591 4,928

1,273 88 1,361

1,610 4,679 6,289

645 4,563 5,208

38 70 108

(346) (126) “72)

337 4,507 4,844

127 27 154

464 4,534 4,998

84 84

1,146 145 1,291

131/217



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

oOoOooodn
18.
2018 30 2018 12 31
74,134
1,715 14
75,849 14
2018 12 31 394,500,000 2018 30
1,037,398,000
19.
2018 12 31 0.01 4.39 2018
30 0.01 10.00
2018 30 2018 12 31
690,548 4,036
908 136,046
5 5
691,461 140,087
20.
0.1
2017 2018 30 2018 12 31 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
2017 2018 30 2018 12 31 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
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2013 10 22
10 i
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2018 30 2018 12 31
1,570,678 1,531,917
1,609,532 1,647,638
3,180,210 3,179,555

189 403

1,715
81,964 85,310
690,951 114,778
774,819 200,491
3,955,029 3,380,046
270,603 270,603
3,003,730 2,410,081
3,274,333 2,680,684
2,980 2,690

370,956
306,760 696,672
680,696 699,362
3,955,029 3,380,046
690,951 114,778
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22
2018 12 31
2,780,681,000 2018 30 3,439,749,000
442,992,000 2018 30 722,780,000 2,337,689,000 2018 30
2,716,969,000
( )
2017 3,104,759 (516,743) 933,826 3,521,842
501,946 501,946
13 (387,790) 80,724 (712,992)  (1,020,058)
2018 30 2,716,969 (436,019) 722,780 3,003,730
24,657 24,657
13 (379,280) 65,419 (304, 445) (618,306)
2018 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 442,992 2,410,081
2009 30
2018 30 0.10 2018 30 2017 30
0.10 313,861,000 2018 30 307,066,000
379,280,000 2018 30
387,790,000 65,419,000 2018 30 80,724,000
22.
FVTOCI
2017 80,215 80,215
41,775 41,775
(52,680) (52,680)
2018 30 69,310 69,310
959 959
2018 959 69,310 70,269
19,590 19,590
83 83
(20,054) (20,054)
2018 12 31 1,042 68,846 69,888
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23.
24.
€))
2018 30 2018 12 31
140,101
767,310
FVTOCI 11,100
4,785
772,095 151,201
376,344 8,975
®)
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@®
2018 30 2018 12 31 2018 30 2018 12 31
5 5 . Z
908 136,046 375,166 5,996
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
6,503,000
2018 30 18,713,000
2018 12 31
43,417,000 2018 30 42,667,000
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100

100 2018 30 100
2018 30 6,915,000
100 2018 30
2018 30 44,708,000
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2018 12 31 12 ECL
A+ 12 ECL 140,087
@iv)
(©)
2018 30 2018 12 31
()
FvTOCI
)
11,100,000

(EV/EBITDA)
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26.
2018 30 2018 12 31
1,271 1,016
2018 30 2018 12 31
1,262 1,052
2018 30 2018 12 31
27.
2018 30 2018 12 31
28.
2017 - - B -
- (673, 866) - (673, 866)
- 1,033,496 - 1,033,496
- 11,326 - 11,326
2018 30 - 370,956 - 370,956
- (1,001,242) (667) (1,001,909)
- 619,405 - 619,405
- - 667 667
- 10,881 - 10,881
2018 12 31 : . - .
265,957,000 265,957,000
29.
2017 2018
1,101,000 HHL

HHL 2018
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11
30.
2018 12 31 263,389,000 2018 30
253,593,000
31.
2008 30
702,000,000 471,000,000 -
702,000,000

32.
2019 28

Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited

(Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area

Development Company Limited)

2019 28
33.

83 134 2019 28
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Fow it sy onih eraled 1T December 2005

Year Six monihs
anded ended
30 e 31 December
MNOTES 2ara 2018
RME 000 RMEOG0
Other income and other expense 7 17,983 5117
Depreciation (1o4a) {154)
Ceneral and administrative expenses (34,404 (16,6581
Finance cosis (411 (i)
Share of results of [oint ventures ] 724,433 140,188
Profit before 1ax 707,863 327,809
Income tax cxpense 9 (41,835) (19,6501
Profit for the vear/period 10 b, 028 108,159

Other comprehensive (expense) incomo
tem that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss:
Fair value gain on investment in cquity instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
net of tax - 417
Iem that may be reclassified subsequently o profit or [oss;
Exchange (loss) gain arising on ranslation of

forcign operations i7.281) 149
Total comprehensive income for the yeanperiod 658,747 308,725
Prafit for the year/period attributalile to:
Owners of the Company 656,197 304,046
Mon-controlling interests 9,831 4,113
60, 028 308,159
Total comprehensive incomd attributable (o
Owners of the Company a6, 91 b 304,012
Mon-controlling inleresis 9831 4,113
(58,747 308,725
RME cets RME ceals
Earninge per share 12
Basic 21.29 987

ANNLAL R FORT 2078
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As ar J | Decemdes X108

J0 Jurme 31 December

NOTES 208 2018
RMBE TN RMEB 000
ASSETS
MNon-current Assels
Interests in join venlures 15 4,851,830 4,797,515
Eqquity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income 16 - 11,100
Investmend 16 4,785 -
Property and ecquipment 17 B4 1,291
4,856,705 4,809,916
Current Assels S
Deposits and prepayments 1,569 678
Dividend and other receivables 18 75,849 14
Bank balances and cash 19 691,461 140,087
JL8 879 140,779
Total Assets 5,625,584 4,950,695
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 20 270,603 270.603
Share premium and reserves 4,877,469 4. 560,631
Equity attributable o owners of the Company 5,148,072 4,839,234
Non-confrolling interests 27,219 0,233
Total Equity 517529 4,869,467
Mon-current Liahility
Deferred tax liability 22 69,310 L9 888
Currenl Liabilities
Payahles and accruals 10,027 11,340
Dividend payable 170,956 -
180,983 11,340
Total Liabilities 450,293 B1,128
Total Equity and Liahilifies 5,625,584 4,950,695
Cash and cash equivalents B9l ,461 140, 087
| Tianliang ZHANG Ji Ly
. Director [hirecror
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fow e sy ot enaled 1T Decembey 2008

PR hevesiment N
Share fhare  shbulery revelmabion  Tasilifos  Refaeed Sub
opitl  premun e e e proits fofal  imfereshy Tedal

FMETND  RUBTOC  RMETOY  RLBWO0  RMBEOY  RMAUND  RMETOD  RARO0  RARNO

Aat | july 2017 Toel LI T (9337 R5ISE0 5516105 10826 535018
Exchasge knss on iraslion of

fnevign eperations . - - {7281} - (7280} - Z0
Profid for the vear B B = BSENOT RSAIEY L] b, 2R
Total compeehessive =xcome

e e et (7281 BENGT  BIASIE LT W7
Chanyge in piofil sharing of

4 poisd venture - - T - - - 12 - A bl
Dividemds recogzined a5 cieribation

rhatiag) the year (ote 1) = {87 - - BTM O TIZSY 02005 = (Lo
Dividerds paid 1 noa-costmling

i - - - - - - - 3438 13488
A ad 20 June 2000 060 2,71 360 107569 - QiAW) TATRED R L4AETD o s
Clpeming iljusiments iNoe 1) - - - L5 - - 4550 - 4 5h
Al | July MOIIR T 17H S 107,58 135 (DA% TATLEDS  S12NER nHe  S1EaT
Faw walen gain cn ivest=ent in

ity rntrusserd & st viloe

thenugh ather comgrebendve

income, eet of i - - - ar - - 417 - “r
Duchange gais or tamilion of

foresgn cpefations - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
Proit foe the perind . - - - = ML 3MME ann 36,159
Tota compichossive acome

for 2 penad - - - 417 W RME el 411 4715
Dnvidends recogrised a5 distribrtion

duuriag the perind (hote 11) - {1 - - WA (B (RIBIDE = D)0k
Dévidemdi paid tn nen-coemiing

T , P, - - - . - (109 (1%
A4 at 31 Diecersher 213 sl 113758 107589 AT (BWOIM)  DATHADE  4EI9IH RITRTT

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in Reaminbi
("RMB") (the presentation currency of the Group), the equity transactions and accumulated carnings
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD") are translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates.
Before the change in functional curréncy of the Company from HKD to BMB during the year ended 30 june
2009, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve represented the difference between the
equity transactions and accumulated earnings translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates and
the assets and fabilities ransiated at the closing rates at the end of each reporting period. Subsequent to the
change in functional currency of the Company, the exchange differences recognised in franslation resene
represented translation of its I::Jmign aperanions,

The special final dividend for the vear ended 30 June 20018 of RMBIO cents (vear ended 30 June 2018: for
the year ended 30 june 2017 of RMB0 cents) per share amounting to approximately RMB313,861,000
{year ended 30 June 2018 KMB30T,066,000] was distributed from the share premium arisen at the time
before the change in functional currency of the Company from HKD 1o RMB. Accurdin;ilg, the share
ium and the comresponding translation reserve had boen debited by RMBIT9, 280,000 (30 June 2018,
B387,790,000) and credited by RMBG5, 419,000 (30 June 2008: RMEA0,724,000) respectively.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited
i*GS Superhighway 1V, the Group's profit sharing ratio in GS Superhighway |V adjusted from 48% to 45%
fram 1 July 2017 for the next ten years undil the end of contractual operation penod, e 530 Juse 2027,
Accordingly, the Group's share of the reserves attributable to the GS Superhighway [V had been adjusted,

ANNLAL R FORT 2078
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fow the o reowstfe el 11 Dheovimabesr 008

Year Six months
enilerd ended
30 fjune 3T December
2018 2018
RMB NN R B
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax TO7. 863 327809
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from investmentiequity instrument
al fair value through ofher comprehensive income (00 {00
Interest income (18,504 (7,128
Interest expense - [0
Gain on disposal of property and equipment {128) -
MNet exchange loss 1,389 2,826
Depreciation 108 154
Share of results of joint ventures (724.433) (340, 188)
Crperating cash flows before movements in working capital 34,305) (16,4600
{Increase) decrease in deposits and prepayments (B2 &) 891
Decrease in other recoivablos ] -
iDecrease) increase in pavables and accruals (1,257} 1,462
MET CASH USED IN OFERATING ACTIVITIES (36, 1800 (14,107)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment {100 i1,361)
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment N9 -
Dividends received (net of PRC withholding tax) 911,124 449,120
Interesd receiveed 18,441 0829
MNET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 029,784 456,588
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mow bank loan raised - 2h5,957
Hank loan repaid - (265,957)
Iriterest paid - {667
Dividends paid fo:
- owners of the Company (B60,428) 01,00, 143)
- non-controlling interests of a subsidiary (13,438) 1,0099)
MNET CASH LUSED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {673,866 (1,001,909)
MNET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 219,738 (559,41H)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 4%, 0067 691,461
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 2,656 8,054
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 691,467 140,087

mote Cash and cash equivalents comprien cack at bandes and cagh on hand, and deposite with Banks subjected to imsignificant risk of
change invalue, and with a mafurity of theee monibs or less from dabe of placing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow it sy onih eraed 1T December 2008

1. General Information

Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (the “Company™) is an exempted company with limited
lihility incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™l. The Company’s immediate halding caompany is Shenehen
Investment International Capital Holdings Infrastructure Co., L, (35502 o B0 2 it 3t e
ll, a campany incarporated in the British Viegin lslands with limited liability, The Company’s ultimale
holding company is Shenzhen lnvestment Holdings Ca., Ltd (RS HEEERFE S5, o company
established in the PRC with limited liability.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information in the annual report.

The Company is an invostment holding company. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiarics and the joint ventures arc set out in nifes 25 and 15 respectively,

The Company’s funciional currency and presentalion currency are RMEB,

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

During the current financial period, the reporting period end date of the Group was changed from
10 June to 31 December because the directors of the Company (the “Dirociors”) determined to bring
the annual reporting period end date of the Group in line with that of the Company’s joint ventures
established in the PRC and the ultimate holding company. Accordingly, the consaolidated financial
statements for the current period cover the six month peried ended 31 December 2018, The
corresponding comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes cover a twelve-month pereod from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2008 and therefore
may not be comparable with amounts shown for the current periodd.

ANNLAL R FORT 2078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the o reowstfe el 11 Dheowimaberr 008

3. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandaltorily effeclive for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and amendments o IFRSs issued by International Accounting
Standards Board for the first time in the current period:

IFRS 9 Financial lnstoumes

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendmenis

IFRIC 22 Forcign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based Paymen) Transactions

IFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying ITRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 [nsurance Contracts
IAS T8 (Amendmenis) As part of the Annual Imperovements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

A% 40 [Amendments) Transfers af Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to IFRSs in the current period
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current period
and prior year andfor on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related amendments

In the current period, the Group has applied IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments” and the related
conssquential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements. for (1) the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, (i) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets and (i) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the fransition provisions sef out in IFRS 9, i.e.
applied the classification and measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL maodel)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derccognised as at 1 July 2008 (date of initial
application) and has nol applied the requirements (o instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 July 20018, The difference between carrying amounts as at 30 June 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 July 2008 are recogmised in the other components of equity, without restating
comparative information,

Accordingly, certain comparative infoemation may nof be comparalile as comparative nformation was
prepared under 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,

Accounting policies resulting fram application of IFRS 9 are disclosed in nofe 4,

FRENPEWELL BRI AY I TRASTHLC TLIRN LEAITID
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow it sy onih eraed 1T December 2008

3. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments lo IFRSs thal are mandatorily effective for the currenl year
(continued)
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9
The table below illustrates the classification of financial assots under [FRS 9 and 1AS 39 a1 the date of
initial application, 1 July 2018,

Equity Deferred Investment
Available- instrument tax  revalwation
MNate for-sale al FYTOCH Fabality resiree
RSB 000 R (TN RN 00 RME 000
Closing balance at
30 June 2018 - 1A5 39 4,785 - 69,310 B
Effect arising from initial
application of IFRS 9:
Reclassification
From available-for-sale ] {4,765) 4,785 - -
Remeasurement
Frowm cost less impairment (o
fair value fi1 = 5,815 959 4,850
Opening balance at
1 uly 2008 - 10,600 70,269 4,856
Benles
i Asailabledor<ale imaestment
Fram availaledor=sala squily invesiment o oguity insdrument at fair valoe throegh other comprehensive income
"FVTOCE".
The Groop eheacted o preent in other comprefiensive inconme o the fair value changes of all io eguity, invisimen)

previously classified as avallable-for-sale. This investmend ks nol beld lor trading amd not expected o be sold in the
foreseeable futwre, Ab the date of inilial application of IFRS % an amount of RAE,TES, 000 was reclasified fom
available-lor-sale investment 1o equity instrement at FVTOC), of which the entire amaunt related o unguoted equity
imvestmend previously measured at oot less Bmpainment under 185 19, The fair value gain net of tas of RMB4 850,000
relating 1o hat uneiaotesd equiry investment previously cantisd an cont less impaicment was sdjusted o equiry insiament an
FWTCL deledred tax Babilty and nvestment revabhalion deserve as af 1 July 2008

ARMSLIAL RIFCERT 2078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the o reowstfe el 11 Dheowimaberr 008

3. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue bul nol yel effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs that have been issued
bt are nod vet effective:

IFRS 16 Lo

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Incomi Tax Treatments!

IFRS 3 (Amendments) Dedinition of a Business!

IFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 {Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Jaint Venture'

IAS 1 and LAS B {Amendments) Dedimition of Material®

1A% 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Sefflement’

1A% 28 (Amendmaenis) Lomg-term Infenests in Associabes and Joinl Ventures!

IFRSs {Amiendments) Annual Impeovements o IFRS Standards 20052017 Cycle!

4 Effective for annual perods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2019

. Eillective for anndal perods beginning on or aftes & date So e detirmimed

Effective for annual pesiods beginning an or aftes 1 January 2021

[ifective or business combinations and assel acquisitions for which the soquisition date is on or alter the beginning of the
first annual pericd beginnkng on or after | Lancary 2000

' Effective for annual pessods beginning an or aites 1 January 2020

The Dircctors anticipate that the application of all new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future,

4. Significant Accounting Policies

The consalidated financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by
International Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitics on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each repodting period, as
caplained in the accounting policies set out below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideratinon given in exchange for goods
and services,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow it sy onih eraed 1T December 2008

4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Fair walue is the price that would be received (o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an onderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whother that price is
directly observable or estimated wsing anather valuation technique. In estimating the fair value af an
asst or a liability, the Group takes into account the charactoristics of the assot or lability if market
participants would take those characteristics info account when pricing the asset or lability at the
measurement date, Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure porposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurernents are cateporised into Level 1, 2or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which ane describied as follows:

*  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
that the eatity can acoess at the measurerment date;

*  Leved 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoded prices included within Level 1, thai are observable
foe the asset or liability, cither dircctly o indirectly; and

+  Level 3 inpats are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.
The principal accounting policies are set ot below,

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial stalements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries, Contral is achicved when the Company:

*  has power over e investes;
s exposed, or has rights, to vanable eeturns from its involvement with the investee; and
= has the ability o use its power (o aifiect its returmns,

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes (o one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary beging when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquingd or disposed of during the year’period are included in the consolidated statement of prni’ur @r
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases 1o control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of olher comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-contralling interests. Todal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and (o the non-controlling interests even if this resulis in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the o reowstfe el 11 Dheowimaberr 008

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Basis of consolidation (continoed)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thaeir
accounting policies inta line with the Group's accounting policies,

All intragroup assots and liabdlities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating o transactions
bestworen memibaers of the Croup ane oliminated in full on consalidation,

Non-contralling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's equity thenein,
which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders 1o a propodionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liguidation.

Interests in joint ventures

A aint venture is a joint arangement wherehy the partics that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights (0 the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joind control is the contractually agreed sharing
of contred of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions aboul (he relevant activitics requine
nanimous consent of the partics sharing control,

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, The financial statements of joint ventunes used for
cOuity accounting purposes are prepared wsing uniform accounting policics as those of the Group for
like fransactions and events in similar circumstances, Appropriate adjusiments have been made (o
conform the joint venture's accounting policies lo those of the Group. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated staterment of financial position
at cost and adjusted therealter 1o recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and othe
comprehensive income of the joint venture, Changes in net assets of the jaint venture other than peodit
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only fo the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture,

The Growp assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount af the Investment fincluding
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 “Impairment of Assets® as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair valoe less costs of disposal] with
its carrying amount, Any impairment recognised forms part of The carrying amownt of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment is recognised in accordance with 1A5 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and development of
the toll expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were nod accounted for by those entities,
Swch cosl are included in additional cost of investments in joint ventures and are amortised over the
jnint venture period on the same basis as that adopted by the relevant joint ventures inorespect of
amaortisation of its project cost, commaencing from the date of operation of the project undertaken, On
disposal of a joinl ventuse, the attributable amount of the vidmortized additional cost of investments is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal,

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
tramsactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
anly o the extent of inferests in the joint venture that are not related o the Group,

Properly and cquipment
Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position af cost less
subsequent acoumilaed depreciation and subsedquent accumilabed impalrment, if any

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, The cstimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed al the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
hasis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
buenefits are expected o anse from the Continued wse of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or eetirement of an item of propedy and equipment s determined as the difierence between
the sales procecds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 measurcd ot the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue (s
recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below,

Imterest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principal ootstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fulure cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset (o that asset’s net Carrying amount on initial
recognition,

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to receive payment have been
estahlished,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifving assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of tirme to get ready for their intended we or
sale, ane added 1o the cost of those assets until such time as the assets ane substantially ready for their
intended vse or sale.

All ather bormowing costs are recognised in profit or Ioss in the period inowhich they are incurred.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Oiperating lease payrmenis is recognised as an expense on a straighi-line basis over the lease term,

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of cach individual group entity, transactions in currencics other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised al the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monctary ilems
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated a the rates provailing at that date, Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arlsing on the seitbement of monetary items, and on the reiransiation of monedary
iems, are recopnised in profit o loss in the period in which they arize,

Fisr the purpases of presenting the consolidated financial statements of the Group in RME, the assels
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into RMB using exchange rates
presailing at the end of sach reporting period. Income and expenses items ane ranslated af the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates luctume significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are wsed, Exchange differences arising.
it any, are recogmised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve,

On the disposal of a foreign operation (Le. that is a dispasal of the Group's ealire interest in 2 foreign
operation, or a disposal invalving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a partial disposal of an interest in & joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
refained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified 1o profit or hoss,

Retirement benefil costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
emplayees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Taxation
Incomi fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payabbe is based on the taxable profit for the yeariperiod. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit bedane tax” as reporied in the consolidated statement of prodit or loss and other compreshensive
income because of income or expense that are faxable or deductible in othor years and items that are
never taxable o deductible, The Group's [lability for currenl tax is calculated wsing tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differonces between the carrving amouonts of assets and
liakilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Eabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, Deferred tax assets are generally recogmised for all dedectible wmporary differences o the
extent that it is probable that taxable prodits will be available against which those deductible temposary
differences can be wtilised, Such doferred tax assefs and liabilitics are not recognised i the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilitics in a transaction that affects neither
the taxalile profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiarics and interests in joinl ventures, except where the Group is able 1o control the reversal of
the temparary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and infedests are only recognised to the extent that it 1= probable that there will be
sufficient taxable peodits against which (o wtilise the benedits of the temporary differences and they are
expecied (o reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is neviewed af the end of cach reporting period and reduced
tor the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available fo allow all or
part of the asset to be recoverned,

Deferred tax assets and lHabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, hased on tax rate (and tax laws) that have heen
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period,

The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would fallow
irom the manner in which the Group expects. ab the end of the reporting period, 1o recover or sefile
the carrving amount of its assets and liahilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable dght 1o set ofi currenl
tax assels against current tax labilities and when they relate to ingome laxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to setile ils cument tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in other cumpmhnnsiw income or directly im equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in ofher comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual prowisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecopnised on a trade date bases, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
salbos of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or conviention in the market place,

Financial assets and financial liabilites are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs thal are
directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other tham
financial assets or financial [iabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added (o or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition,
Transaction costs direcitly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilitics ai fair
walue through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of 4 financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating inferest income and intenest expense over the relevant period. The
cifective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or reccived that foem an integral pan of the effective intorest rate.
fransaction costs and other premiums ar discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
fimancial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorier period, o the net carrying amount on indtial
recognition,

Financial assels
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with iransitions in nofe 3)
Financial assets that mest the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contraciual cash
Tlows; and

= the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the fnllvadng conditions are subsequently measured at FYTOCE:

= the financial assed is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash Nows and selling: and

=  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash ilows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All aher financial assets are subseguently measured at fair value through peofit and loss, except that at
the date of initial applicationdinitial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect (o
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingen! consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business Comhbinations applies.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets lupon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Amuortised cost and inlerest income

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured
subseauently at amortised cost and debt instrumentsreceivabiles subsequently. measured at FVTOCL
For financial instruments other than purchased or onginated: credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective inferest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
assel, excepl for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impained (see below), For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income s recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the nest reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves sothat the financial asset
is o longer credit-impaired, interest incomae is recognised by applying the effective interest rafe to the
peoss Carrying amowd of the financial assed from the beginning of the reporing period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equnly instruivents dosignatod as at FVTOC)

Investments in equily instruments al FYTOC! are subseqguently measured al fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the imvestment revaluation reserve: and ane not subject to impairment assesement, The cumulative
gain or loss will nat be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to refained profits,

Dividkends from these investments in equily instruments are recognised in profit of loss when the
Group's Fight to receive the dividends s eslablished, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment, Dividends are included in the olber income and olher expenses
line: ftem in profit or loss,

Imparment of ffnarcal assets (upon applicaton (FRS 9 with trensitions i accordance with note 3
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 lincluding dividend and other receivables and bank balances and cashl, The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting clate to reflect changes in credil risk since initial recognition,

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible defaull events over the expected life
of the relevant instrument, In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected (oo resull from defawlt events that are possibie within 12 months aiter the reporting date,
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for @actors that
are specific to the deblors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the curreni
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Impairment of Fnancial assots (ppon application IFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
foonlimued)

Foer all instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 1 2-manth ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifotime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifctime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood o risk of & default occurring since initial recognition,

Stgniifcant increase fn credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurning on the financial instrument as-at the reporting date with the
risk of o defoull occurring on the financial instrument as af the date of initial recognition, In making
this assesement, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative informateon that i< reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is availabile
withoutl undue cost or effor.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credin risk has
increased significantly:

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating:

s significant deleroration in extemnal market indicators of credil risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit defaull swap prices for the debior;

»  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions thal are
expected to cause a significant docrease in the debtor's ability 0 meet it debt obligations;

* anactual or expected significant detersioration in the operating results of the debtor;

® an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, of technological
environment of the debitor thal results in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to mect its
debi abligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contraciual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates othensise,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets lupon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Siprificant increase in credit sk (continued)

Despite the afvregoing, the Groop assumes that the credil risk on o deldt instrument has md increased
significantly since initial recogaition if the delw instroment is determined o have low credie risk at the
reparting date, A debt instrument is determined to hawve low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default,
(i) the borrower has a strong capacity o moct its contractual cash flow obligations in the near ferm
and (i) adverse changes in cconomic and buginess conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarnily, reduce the ability of the borrower o fuliil s contractual cash Tlow abligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have bow credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment gradoe” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitars the effectiveness of the criteria used o ddentify whether there has been a
significant increase in ceedit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensene that the criteria are capable
of identifying sigmificant increase in credit risk bedore the amount becomes past due,

Diesfinition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of defaull occurs when information
developed internally or oldained from external sources indicates that the deblor is unlikely to pay it
creditors, including the Group, in full iwithout taking into account any collaterals held by the Growpl.

Creghit-irroanired financiol assets

A financial asse i credit-impaired when one o more events of defaule that bave a detrimental impact

an the estimated future cash flows of that inancial asset have cccurred. Evidence that a fimancial assed

is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

fa) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borsower:

by a breach of coniract, such as a default or past due event;

(el thee lender(sh of the borrower, foe economic or contractual reasons relating (o the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the horrawer a concession(s) that the lenderis) would mo

otherwise consider;

{dh it is becoming probable that the borsower will enter bankruptcy or odher financial recsrganisation;
o

izl the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset becavse of financial difficulties.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Wite-off policy

The Growp writes off a fimancial assel when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic praspect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed undoer liguidation or has entered into bankrupicy procesdings. Financial
assets writhen off may still be subject to enforcoment activitics under the Group's recovery procedurcs,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate, A writc-off constitutes 4 derecognition event. Any
subsequent recovenies are recognised in profil o loss,

Measuremont and recagnition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (e, the
magnitude of the loss i there b= a default] and the exposure ot default, The assessment of the
prabability of default and Ioss given defauit is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
informatian, Estimation of ECL reflects an unliased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of defaull occurnng as the weights,

Generally, the ECL is the difierence between all coniractiual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects (oo receive, discounted al the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition,

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where evidence at the individuwal
instrument [evel may nol yet be available, the inancial insteuments are grouped on the follonving basis:

= MNajure of financial instruments (e, the Group's other receivables are each assessed as a separate
Broup;

*  Past-tue staus;
*  Natwre, size and industry of debiors; and
®  External credit ratings where availahle.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characliristics,

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial assel unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 july
2008)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: loans and receivables and

available-for-sale financial assets, The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the inancial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Lentnis and receivables

Loans and receivables afe aon-derivative financial assels with fixed o determinable payments that are
nol quoted inan active market. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
dividend and ather receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at amontised cost using the
effective interest maethod, less amy impairment.

Inferest incom is recognised on an elfective inferest basis for debt instroments.

Availfaliie-tor-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that ane either designated as available-forsale o
aree ol classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) beld-tosmaturity investments or (c) financial asscts a
fair value through profit or loss,

Availabile-for-sale equity investiments that do not have a quoted market price in an aclive market and
whose fair value cannod be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment ai
the end of cach reporting poeniod.

Dividends on available-for-gale equity instruments are recognised in profit o loss when the Group’s
right 1o receve the dividends is established,

Imparment of finarcial assers (hefore application of IFRS 9on 1 luly 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period, Financial
asseds arg considered (o be impaired when there s objective evidence that, as a resull of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
af the financial assels have been afected,

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a defaull or delinguency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the horrower will enter |'h1|'lkl’|,l|'.l-1!,‘1_.r or financial re-grganisation,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels {continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 July

201 8) {continued)

Impairment of financial assets {before application of IFRS G on 1 fuly 2001 8) fcontinmed)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment recogmsed s the
difference hetween the asset’s carrying amaunt and the present value of the estimated future cash
flowws discounted at the financial assets” ariginal effective inferest rate,

Far financial assets carried al cost, the amount of the impairment is measeoed as the difference
between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of the estimated Tuture cash lows
digcounted at the current market rate of et for a similar financial asset. Such impaiment wall not
b veversed in subsequont poriods,

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impaimment dicectly for all financisl assets
with the exception of dividend and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced theough
the wse of an allowance account, Changes in the carrying amount of the allowanoe account ane
recognised in profit or loss. When the dividend and other receivable are considencd uncollectible, they
are written off against the allowance account. Subseguent recoverices of amounts previowsly written off
are credited 1o prodin or loss.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, i in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively o an event occurring after the impaiment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment is reversed through profit o [oss (o the extent that
the carrying amaount of the asset ot the date the impairment s reversed does oot exceed what the
amartised Cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash lows from the
assel expirg, or when it transiers the financial assel and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity,

On derccognition of a financial assel measured af amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable s recognised in profit and
liyss,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continucd)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classificd as cither financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liahility and an equity
imstrumeent,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument s any contract that evidences a residual inferest in the assels of the Group after
diducting all of its habilities, Equity instrumients issued by a group entity are recognised at the
procecds received, net of dincct ssue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial labilities are subsequoently measurcd at amortised cost using the effect ve interest method.

Fimancial liahilities at amortised cost
Financial lialalities including payables and accruals and dividend payable are subsequently measured
at amorised cost, using the effective interest method,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the Group’s abligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit o loss,

Impairment on tangible assels

Al the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its langible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment, If any such
indication exists, (he recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order (o determine the extent of
the impairment (it any),

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (o which the asset belongs, When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated fo the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Impairment on tangible assels (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in wse, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their present value wsing a pre-tax
dizcount rate that refllects current market assessmenis of the tme value of money and the risks specific
tor thie asset for which the estimates of futare cash flows hive not boeen adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-gencerating unitl is estimated o be less than its carnying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount, The amount of the impairment that would otherwise have been allocated ta the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unil. An impairment is recognised immediately in profit or
hoss,

Whare an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset for a cash-pencrating
unit] is increased to (the rivised estimate of its recoverable amount, hut so that the increased carrying
amaunt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
been recognised for the asset {or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment is
recognised immediately in profit o loss,

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting pelicies, which are described in note 4, the Directors are
reeguired toomake judgements, estimates and assumplions abouot the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are net readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptinns
are hased on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results
may differ from those estimates.,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions (o accounting
estimates are recognised in the pedod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
peeriod, o in the period of the revision and future periods if the rovision affects both current and future
peericacks.

Critical judgemenls in applying accounting policies

The iollowing are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the Direclors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements,

Classification of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited ("G5
Superhighway I1V") and Guangdong Guangzhou-Zhuhai West Superhighway Company
Limited (*West Route |V™) as joint ventures

Both G5 Superhighway 1V and West Route [V are limited lability companies whose legal form confers
separation botween the partics to the joint arrangement and the Company itseli, Furthermaore, there ame
no confractual arrangements or any athoer facts and circumstances that specify that the parties 1o the
joint arrangement have righis to the asseis and obligations for the Babilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, GS Superhighway |V and West Route |V are classified as joint ventures of the Group.
Dhetails are set out in node 13,

FRENPEWELL BRI AY I TRASTHLC TLIRN LEAITID

[ 104 |

164/217



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow it sy onih eraed 1T December 2008

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty icontinued)

Key sources of eslimalion uncerlainly

The following are the key assumplions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the ead of the reporting periods that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the sest financial year.

Interests in joint ventures/share of resulls of joinl veniures

(it Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures

Amorization of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group s calculated bascd
on prits-of-usage basis, de. the ratio of actual traific volume of the underlying toll expresiways
for a particular pernod over the todal expected trafiic volume of the underlying ol expressways
over the remaining concession penods of the sorvice concession agreements. The total expected
traffic volume over the remaining concession period was estimated by the management with
reference to a report preparcd by a thicd party traffic consultant in a prior year faken into
consideration of variows factors such as the annual growih rale of the rafiic volume, the aciual
trafiic volume in the recent periods, the change of the transportation network of the region and
government policies relating to the toll expressway operation in the PRC. As part of the
established policy of the Group, the management has seviewed the total expected traffic valume
af the end of the reporting periods, Adjustments may need (o be made to the carying amounts. of
concession intangible assers should there be a material difference between the total expected
trafiic volame and the actual results,

As at 31 December 2018, the interests in joint ventures amounted o RMB4, 797 525,000 (30 June
207 8: RMB4,851,836,0000 and the share of results of joint ventures for the six months ended
31 December 2006 ampunted o RMBI40, 188,000 {year ended 30 June 2018; RMB724,453,000),
Included in the share of resulls of joint ventures was an amaunt of RMB326,003,000 (year ended
30 June 2018: BMB&18,494,000), which represented the share of amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group, The management considers that the
amartisation is calculated by reference 1o the best estimates of the total expected traffic volumes
of the underlying toll expressways and they should not be materially difierent from the actual
traific volumes in future, The current period amortisation of concession intangible assets is less
(vear ended 30 June 2018: more) than the amorisation estimated in the prior financial year based
on the then expected traffic valumes for fulure financial years and the effect on share of resulis of
jnt ventires is approsimate to RMB2,091 000 (year snded 30 June 2018: RMB12, 228, 0000,
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainly teontinued)

Key sources of eslimation uncerlainly (continued)

Interesis in joint venlures/share of results of joinl venlures (continued)

(i} Resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures
The joint vemures of the Group have contractual obligations under the contractual service
arrangements to mamtain the ol expressways o specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods. These obligations 1o maintain or restore the oll expressways,
excopt for upgrade sorvices, are to be recognised and measured as resurfacing obligations,
Resurfacing obligations had been made at the present value of cxpenditurcs expected to be
incurred by the joint ventures to settle the obligations,

As at 31 Decembser 2008, the interests in joint ventures amounted to KRMEBS, 797,525,000 (30 june
2018: RMB4,851.836,000) and share of resulis of joint ventures for the six months onded
31 December 2008 amounted to BMBI40, 156,000 (year ended 30 June 20018; RMB724,433.000).
Included in the intercsis in joint venlures was an amount of RMB220,243,000 (30 June 200 8:
RMB20F, 590,000, which represented the share of provision fior the resurfacing obligations of the
joint ventures of the Groug.

The amount expected o be regquired to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting period is
determined based on the number of major resurfacing works 1o be undertaken over the
concession periods under the service concession agreements and the expected costs (o be
ingurred for each event, The costs are then discounted to the present value based on a pre-tax
discouni rate.

The expected coss for maintenance and resurfacing and the Gming of such events (o fake plice
involvie estimates made by the management, which were based on the resurfacing plins of the
Group, historical costs incurred for similar activities and the latest quotations from the service
provder,

If the expected expenditures, resurfacing plans and discount rate were different from (he
managenent's current estimates, the change in resurfacing obligations is required 1o be accounted
Tor prospectively.

The management are of the view that the discount rate currently used in the current estimate
should reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to the ohbligations.
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6. Segment Information

The Group's reportable and operating segments are determined based an information reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Information reported to the chiel operating decision maker, including segment revenue, the Group’s
share of joint ventures’ carnings before inferest, tax, depreciation and amortisation before net exchange
gainfloss ("ERITOA, the Group's share of joint ventures’ depreciation and amortisation including
amartisation of additional cost of investiments in joint ventures (“depreciation and amaortisation”), the
Group's share of joint ventures’ interest and tax before tax on exchange gainfoss and including
withhalding tax an carnings distributed by a joint ventuee ("interest and tax”), and segment mesults, is
mare specifically focused on individual toll expressways projects jointly operated and managed by the
Growp and the relevant joint venture pariner, Accordingly, the Group's reporting and operating
segmoents under IFES 8 *Operating Segments” are therefore as folloes:

= Guangzhou-Shenzhen Superhighway (*G5 Superhighway ")
= Western Delia Route

Information regarding the above segments is reposted below,

Segment revenue and resulls

T endedd 18 Jine M1 52 marviy el 17 Derembey 2010
Degrerution Degrecistin
Segomi ad et eyt eprw ol Infresl et
Ll BP0A  awoinaion i B L] mov B wrten imf i el
ngwe  Linm LA Lo i Pt b | i i
G Sgh, LEL LU L B {12a b gL | AT WA (ELET e o
Wende ek e Wi S04 gmmR ann 178 LA 1M (L RN R LAl
Tatd LR R T LS a7 BN LI ML (LW (AR (R
{oqurats s rcoee
e deprran s bR |
ey i B |11
Loty grwral sncd e
e i depeisne (i R0 [R[1 10
Comperats franoe ook i thalls
Loperate moome i ngers L1 L]
Vert nc e gaie fiom) e ol
el e s i 1L 7,9
Pt o e parpeed B EM LR
Troiit ow e vearpernd simbutabie o
Al el RER (TR
Pt om e parpornd Efmbetaiée
mare e Comurn (174 i Gl

Mute: Net enchamge gain (s et of velabend v L s composed of the Group's share of thee eschange bows (net of elabed
income tax) of a joinl venture of RMEB34, 367 000 I:.'ﬂrtnihd b June 20010k met rn'lunpr gakn (net of redlated income tax)
of RMB21 541,000 and the net exchange loss of the Cmup of RALED, B 000 (year endod 10 June 200182 RMBET, 385,000).
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6. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and resulls (continued)

The segment revenue represents the Group's share of joint ventures” toll revenue received and
receivable tnet of value-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways in the PRC based on the
profit-sharing ratios specificd in the relevant joint venture agreements, All of the segment revenue
repearted- above is carned from extemnal customors,

The segment results represent the () Group’s share of joint ventunes’ results from the operations of 1oll
capressways in the PRC before net exchange gainfloss (not of related income tax) based on the profit-
sharing ratios specificd in the relevant joint venture agreements, (i) net of the withholding tax
attributed to the dividend received from and the undistributed carnings of the joint ventures; and
(it} amortisation of additional cost of investrments in joint ventures, This is the measure reported (o the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and perormance assesment.

The total segment results can be reconciled (o the share of results of joint ventures as presented in
consolidated staterment of prafit o loss and ather comprehoensive income as foll ows;

Yewar Six mronths
endecd ended
J0 june 3T December
2018 2018
RN (N RMB 000
Total segment results 659,115 154,965
Al
Mt exchange gain floss) (net of selated income tax) 23,543 (34,367}
Withholding tax attribwsted o the dividend received from
__ and the undisributed earnings of the joint ventures 4775 19590
Share of results of joini ventures as presented in consolidated
statement of profil or loss and other comprehensive income 724,433 340,188
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6. Segment Information (continued)

Other segment information

The below other segmuont information, included in the measure of segment prafit or loss, represents the
Group's share of interest income of the joint ventures, Such amount relating to the joint ventures are
eliminated under equity method of accounting to reconcile from “Segment odal® o “Consolidated
tostal™.

[ Weslern Segment Consalidated
Soperhighway  Delta Rowle tdal  Eémwnation  Dealfocated fodal
RVIE DO RAB D00 RME'000 RMIE 000 R O BAE T
Year endied
30 June 208 4036 T 4 805 4,805 148,504 16.504
Six moaths endhd
11 December X006 1247 iz 3,749 {3,749) 7118 1018

Geographical informalion

The cperations of the Group’s jaint ventures are located in the PRC, All of the joint ventures' revenue
from exbernal customers was generated from the services peovided in the PRC and the location of the
non-current assets excluding interests in joint ventures and equity instrument at FVTOCH nvestment
amounting to RMBT,297,000 (30 June 2018; RMBS4,0000 are in Hong Kong,

Segmenl assets and liabililies

Segment assets and labilities are not disclosed in the consalidated Ninancial staterments as they ane not
regularly provided o chiel operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
PEFNIMANCE ASSESSMEnt,
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7. Other Income and Other Expense

Yesar Six myevinbhis
ended ernded
30 Jearne 11 December
2018 2018
RMB (0 R0 i
Interest income from bank depasits 18,504 7,128
Met exchange loss {1,385) 12, 026)
[hividend income from investmentéequily instrument al FvTOCH 640 GO0
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 128 -
Others 140 215
17,983 5,117
B. Share of Results of Joint Ventures
Yisdr Six months
enched ended
A0 jure 3T December
2018 I
RAME (N0 R0 0
Share of results of joeint ventures before share of imputed interest
expenses incurred by a joint venture on interest-free registered
capital contributions made by the Group and amortisation of
additional cost of investments in joint ventures (Note 150 B16,975 36,942
Amortisation of additional cost of investments in joinl venfunes {92,542} (46,7 54)
Share of imputed interest expenses incurmed by a joint ventune on
interesi-free registered capital contributions made by the Group (47,9120 {25,452)
Imputed interest income recognised by the Group on interest-free
registered capital contributions made by the Group 47,92 25,452
724,433 340,188
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9. Income Tax Expense

Yeurr Sin mioriilis
ended ended
10 fues 11 December
2018 e
RME OO0 RME OG0
The tax charge comprises;
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT7) 52,740 0,114
Diefermed tax (Nate 22) (6L SN ) [E1=14]
41,835 19,650

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable prafit derived from
or arising in Hong Kong for the yeanjperiod.

The EIT charge of the Group for the sis months ended 31 December 2018 included an amount of
RMB20,054,000 (yvear ended 30 June 2018: RMBS2,680,000) reprosenting the 5% withholding tax
impased on dividends declaned during the yeanperiod by a joint venture of the Group of which the
corresponding amount had already been provided for defered tax in prior years in respect of
undistributed carnings of a joint ventune,

The income tax cxpense for the vearperiod can be reconciled to the profit before tax per consolidated
statement of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income as follows:

Year Siv months

ended ended

30 fune 3T December

201d 28

RMEB 000 RMEO0O0

Proafit bafore tax J07. 863 127,809
Tax at normal PRC income tax rate of 25%

{year ended 30 June 2001 8: 25%) 176,966 81,952
Effect of different tax rates on income tax expense (50 (90}
Tax pifect of income not taxable for tax purposes 4.693) {1,835}
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,985 5,080
Tax effect of share of resulis of joint venfures (181, 108) {85,047}
Withholding tax on carnings distributed by a joint venture 41,775 19,590
IRCOmEe fax expens: 41835 19,650
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10. Profit for the Year/Period

Year Sin mrrowaths
endecd ended
30 jume 3T December
2018 2018
RMB (0 RO i

Profit for the yeariperiod has been ardved at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration 1,383 1,141
Directoes’ emoluments (Note 11) 10,193 2863
Dither s1aii cosls 12,625 7073
Total stafi costs 22,818 9,936
Depreciation of property and equipment 108 154
Finance cosls {Note) 41 GEd

Painte Thes amount represents thit hank charges and bank loan intese for the yearpersiod,
11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments
The emaluments paid or payable to cach of the 8 (year ended 30 June 2008: 13) Directors were as

firlleawws:
Neur ke 10 Jome X010 &y poedls maded 1 Devember W14
Cintvhrne Cantriaten
] ]
Lilines e rrisenen!
Dowhon’  asdcthy Dicwtinmy  beneiy Dirertn O Dacrelionry  besellty
b ety by alen Tl e bl [ plam Tols!
AT EMBDN  RNETO  RMETC RAGTOR DWETE DM EVATR D e
ﬂuﬁull.'l!ﬁ.hu - . = - - &
riﬁ.-;ﬂmr.ﬁwb; L] 1% = ' m w (1] = Tl
Cherg WU Poste ) B 1% - i w BT - i
B UL e -} %5 - - m L4 (15 = - bt
Qengyong O (ke i - L E . 1 g ]
Juaye CAl (ke [} - - - - N - - 1
R D W Bm L e 1] in F] - - . H
Tulwng CHNG ol bil . 7 1 E . 1]
Ty Courag Mom KAN [eote 1 ] - - - ) Im - - . m
Ciatskon Yiag Sheung WL (e i 116 = . 14 . = . - ;
Tikhe g Chang HO (ot k| 1 55 - - LIS B u .
T Jefferson WU Mot | 16 LBl - 1 1M = = - -
Al Chi Hang CHAN (ol m) 18 2452 - B Lkl - .
(Chug Kenmg POCA (Noke g | 2 “: = ]| A
Tl e ok o hull - - - m - - - -
Ml Lo L1 (Mot i ) < - : H Z
21m AT - . 1] X 1] (5] - " L]
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11. Directors’” and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments (continued)

Directors” emoluments (continued)

The Executive Directors” emoluments shown above wore paid for their wervices in connection with the
management of the affaire of the Company and the Group. The emoluments of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Dircctors shown above were paid for their services as
Direciors,

Ml

i M Shengyu LU was appainted &5 a Non-executive Director and the Chasrman ol the baard of ditecioes of the Company
ithe *Haard™) om 11 Ageil 2008, He walved his direcanes foo for acting a8 a4 Mon-executive Disscior and the Chabmnan of
Al Boaaral do thwe prisrhiel frowm 11 Agieil 2018 80 11 Devemlaes 2008

by Mr Tianliorg EHANG wn appainhed as an Executive Director and the Geneval Manages of ihe Company on 11 Apdil
2014,

wr Mr Cheng WU was appointed s an Exeouthve Director and the Depuiy General Manager of the Company on 11 Apeil
2ma

i M ]I was appointed a5 an Faocuithos [peror, the I’:lrtpl.dq- Compwral Manages of il Comguany and Secetary fn ihe
Thoard o 11 Ageil 244 6

i ME Ohngyorg GU wis apisombisd a6 3 Mon-ssecutive Director of the Company on 27 August 2018,

L} AL Junye CAL was ﬂI'rPlh-ﬂl'ﬂl‘I'i A Mon-mecve Drecsor of 1he ‘.-ldelll'f' un 1 Decembser 2008

g A Beian David Man Bun LEwas appointed as an Indepesdent Soneascutive Directon, the Chaimasn of thie Bemunesalion
Commiites ol the Congpany (*Remunetation Commiites”) on 11 Apeil 3018,

the M, Yu Luag CHING was appolried 36 an Independont Mon-escative Dinecton, the chaimman of i Audit Commities of
ther Comnpany (= Audit Commities™) arl 3 momber of thie Reemurseration Commimes on 11 Ageil MK

] Mr, Tony Chung Nin KAN was [l A as am Indegeenclent Mom-asoruiion Dilrecton, the msmber of e Audil Comminee
amwl the Remimeratenn Commieee on 11 ﬁ.|:|JI 2018,

i S Gordon Ying Sheung WU was re-deskgnated from am Executive Disector and the Chairman of the Board to a Mon-
wxpcul v Direcioren 11 l"d'"‘“ 20 anel ll".ilgm‘ﬂ &% & Mor-parout e [Heecine an 2 M»Il'r' 2 H

ik M Eiddie F'Jng f‘luilu, MY wars ul-qll:li!,mlnl frosm an Exvoubive Direcior and the Viee Clairman of the Boand e a MNoms
execuiive Direcior on 11 Apell 20010 and n—dpﬂnl &% & Morewecutive Dimeceos an 2 Aay 20011

Wi Mr, Thomas Jefforsen WL was re-designabod from an Executive Eirecior and the Managing Director of i f_'mm.u.,- i @
Mon-pxsouiive Directorom 11 Apeil 2018 amd lmlgnm! A6 3 Moe-pxeC by Derectior on 2 My e

imi e, Alam Chi I-quu CHAN was re-debgnated from an Buscutlve Director and ihe I'Jﬂpl..-l'r Managing Dector of the
Crmpany b a Mon-eeciion Diecis on 11 hprll 2018 aned H'i.'q:l,rhid ak i Mn-Esecutive Direcene on 2 May J01h

mh M Chung Kwdang POON coaed 1o e a5 a Chalrman of the Remuneratisn Commitles and o memiber of the Audil
Comamittes on 11 Agril 2008 and resigrad as an independent Son-esecuthve Director on 2 May 2008,

M Yok Keung 1F coased 1o be as a Chalman of the Aucil Commites amil a memdwr of the Remuneration Commities on
11 Apedl 08 and lrglumq!a» an 1|::lq.u-ns|lpd Mon-pxscuiive Dlrector am 2 May 2018,

e M Alenander Lamson LM pr-n;nﬁd as am Independent Non-evecutive Disecior on 2 hlry Ol
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11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments (continued
Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
O tho five individuals with the highest emaluments in the Groug, 3 (vear ended 30 June 20182 4) wore
Drrectors whose details of their emoluments ane disclosed above,

The emaluments of the remaining 2 ivear ended 30 June 2008: 1) highest paid employees wene as

folleaws:
Year Six months
ended ended
30 jure 3T December
2018 FIN )
RAB K RMB O
Salaries and other benefits 1,061 1,146
Discretionary bonus 127 =
Comtribation to retirement benedils plans 15 16
1,183 1,162

The aumber of the highest paid employvecs who are not Directors whose remuneration fell within the
following hands is as follows:

Year Six maoniths

ended ended

30 furme 11 December

208 2018

My, af No. of

amplovess employees

MNil o HES 1,000,000 - 2
HES1,000,007 to HEKS1, 500,000 1 -

During the year ended 30 June 2008 and the six months ended 31 December 2008, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the persons who are Directors of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group as an inducement 10 join o epon foining the Group of as compensation for loss of office,
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12. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic carnings per share attributable o the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

Year Six months
e ended
30 fune 31 Degermber
2018 2018
RME OO0 HME DR
Earnings for the purpose of basic carnings per share 656,197 304,046
Number of shares
Year Siv months
ended ended
30 June 11 December
20ra 2018
Mumber of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic eamings per share 3081, 690,243 3,081,6590,243

Mo diluted earmings per share have been presented as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the yvear/penod,

13. Dividends

Year Six months
Enile ended

i fupe 3T December
2018 iR
RMETOOR RME OO

Divadends recogmised as a distnbution during the yearipenod:

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 of

RMB11.6 cents (equivalent 1o HK1 4, 24028 cents) per share 356,756 -
Final dividend for the year endied 30 June 2008 paid of

RMB9.7 cents (oquivalent to HK11.114551 contsh

tyear ended 30 June 200 B: for the year ended 30 June 2017

paid of RMB11.6 cents (equivalent to HK13.58986 cenis))

per share 356,190 304,445
Special final dividend for the year ended 30 june 2018

paid of RMB10 cents {equivalent to HKT 14583 cents)

tyear ended 30 June 201 8: for the year ended 30 June 2017

paid of RMB10 cents (equivalent to HK11.71540 centsih

per share 107 066 113,861

20,058 618,306
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13. Dividends icontinued)

Year Six serowalhs
ended ended
T fuarner 11 December
2018 218
RMB (0 R0 @i
Proposed dividends;
Firal dividend for the six months ended 31 December 2018
proposed of RMES.S cents (equivalent to HK11,615472 cents)
{year ended 30 June 2018: for the yoar ended 30 June 2018 aof
RMBY.7 conts lequivalent to HK11.114551 cents)) per share 298,924 305,087
Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 of
EMBT0 cents (equivalent (o HKT1, 4583 cents) per share 108,169 -
607,093 ans. 087

A final dividend in respect of the six manths ended 31 December 2008 of RMEB9.9 cents [cauivalent fo
HEY1.615472 cents) per share is proposed by the Board, The dividend is subject to approval by
sharcholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and have not been included as liabilities in
these consolidated financial statements. The proposed final dividend is caleulated based on the total
number of issued shares al the date of approval of these consolidated Ginancial statements,

14. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the *MPF Scheme®) for its Hong
Kong employess, The assefs of the scheme ame held separately in funds which ane under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to peodit or Inss represent
confributions paid or payable by the Group fo the scheme at 5% of each of the employecs’ monthly
relevant income capped at HES30,000. In addition, the PRC employees employed by the Group are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The
Group is required to contribute 18% of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes (o fund the
henefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement bencfit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes. At 31 December 2018, thore were no forfeited
coniributions available to reduce future cbligations. The total contributions made by the Group fo the
MPF Scheme and the PRC retirerment benedit schemes for the six months ended 31 December 20018 ane
RMB420,000 (year ended 30 June 201 &: RMBS38,000),
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30 fune . 37 December
2ird 20ra
RAE OO0 RMEDOD
Unlisied investiments:
Al cost
Cost of investment in a joint venture 2,020,789 2,020,789
Additional cost of invesiments 2,520,218 2520218
Share of results of joint ventures before share of
imputed inberest expenses incumed by 3 [odnl ventune
on interest-iree registered capital contributions made
by the Group (net of dividend received) 1,408,699 1,401,142
Less: Share of accumulated imputed interest expenses incurmed
by a joint venture on interest-iree registered capital
contributions made by the Group [405,944) (431,396)
Less: Accumulated amorisation of additional cost of investments (1,526,581) {1,573,335)
4,017,181 3,937,418
Al amaortised onst
Registened capital contribution, at nominal amount 2,449 500 2,449,500
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition (2,020, 78%9) (2,020,789
Accumulated imputed interest income recognised by the Group 405,944 431,3%6
834,635 860,107
4,851,836 4,797,525

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures as at 30 June 2008 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Place of
eslabirdamenil
and principal Fropartio of Propertin
plceo Fulypd giteredcapial  ofvotg
Name of company operalion  regisfored capial Principal sctily  coadnibution rights held
REEERLREALRE The PRC Nil Development, coeration Nl appiscahle 18
GIHHEIM-SMJHHM Node 1l ad m@m|d
Supethighwiy Company Lisvied 0 EXpITIWY
ARRGERER AR LS TheE R 890 000,000 [evekapment, cpeeaion 0% 1
Gusngdony Cuangrbao-Thulis Wit [Meke il and masagement of
Superhighwiy Company Lisied I xSy

Haoth joint ventures are sino-foreign co-operative joint venture enterprises established 1o invest in toll

expressways projects in the PRC,
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15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The principal terms of the joint venture agreements entercd into between the relevant subsidiaries and
the corresponding joint venture pariners under which the joint ventures operate are as follows:

i) GS Superhighway |V
S Superhighway |V is established (o ondetake the development, operation and management of
the G5 Superhighway, an expressway in Guangdong Frovince of the PRC running between
Shenzhen and Guangzhou. The operation period is 30 vears from the official opening date 1 July
1997, At the end of the operation period, all the immovable assets and facilities of GS
Superhighway IV will revert to the PRC joint venture partner without compensation.

The Group's entitherment o the pralit of the toll operations of GS Soperhighway [V is 505 for the
initial 10 vears of operation period, 48% for the next 10 yvears and 45% for (he last 10 years of the
aperation period,

The registered capital amounting to HES702,000,000 (equivalent to RMBAT,000,000) previously
injected by the Growp 1o GS Superhighway |V had been repaid (o the Group by GS Superhighway
IV during the year ended 30 june 204068,

{ii) West Route |V
West Houle |V is established to underiake the developmeni, operation and management of
Western Delta Route, an expressway linking Guangzhou, £hongshan and Zhuhai and was built in
three phases,

Phase | of the Western Delta Route (“Phase | West™)

The total investment for the Phase | West is RMB 1, B30,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of West Koute |V amounting to RMBSES, 000,000 which had been confributed
by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in nqual share (i.e. sach to contribute
RMB294, 000,000, The operation period for Phase | West is 10 years commencing from
17 September 2003,

Phase 11 of the Weslern Delta Route (“Phase 11 Wesl1™)

The total investment for Phase || West is RMEBG, 715,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registercd capital of West Boute [V amounting to RMBZ, 351,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Group and the PRC joint venture pariner in egqual share (e, each o contribute
RMB1,175500,0000 The toll collection period for Phase 1| West is 25 years commencing from
25 June 20010

Phase 111 of the Western Della Route (“Phase 111 West™)

The tedal investment for the Phase 111 West is RMBS, 600,000,000, 35% of which was funded by
the registered capital of West Route |V amounting to RMEBE1,960,000,000 which had been
contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture pariner in equal share (e, each to contribute
RMBGS0,000,000), The foll collection pericd for Phase Il West is 25 years commencing from
25 January 2013,

As at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2018, the fully paid registered capital of West Roule |V was
RMEB4, 899,040, (K,

The Group is entitled 1o 50% of the distributable profits from operation of West Route |V, Al the
end of the respective operation'toll collection periods of Phase | West, Phase 11 West and Phase 1]
West, all the immovable assets and facilities of each phase will be reverted to relevant PRC
governmental authority which regulates transportation without compensation. The registered
capital coniributions are required to be repaid o both the Group and the PRC joint venture
partner, The repayments are requined (o be approved by the board of directors of West Rowte |V,
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15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint ventures and reconciliation of the
summarised financial information o the carrying amount of the interssts in joint ventures recognised
in the consolidated financial statements are sel out below, The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accosdance

with IFRSs.

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2008 and the six months ended 31 December 2018;

179/217

30 Juine MH B 31 Depembser 2008
S 3
Superhighmwary West Seupeshighway West
W Rowle [V Total v Rowle JV Tatal
RATE 000 RMBTG RMETDN RABDO0 RMET0 RMETH
Nor-currenl Assels
Property and eouipment 400,152 JB0,621 41,017 J6h, 340
Congession intargible atsis 7,384 D44 12,026,224 T.056,353 11,06, 442
TIB4096 11406847 7 AT A50 12,172,788
Currenit Assels
Benk balance and cash
- Cash and cash ecuivalents 436 453 B, 212 400,145 151,943
- Timne: dipesits with odiginad
matarfy over throe months 0, 00Hy - 30,00 -
(ehers 53315 35,774 119 17,781
339,738 1219 504,684 179,724
Nos-currest Liahilities
Resurizcing obligations (376,96} (100,833 {397 472 (107, 5441
Mor-curren] financial liabifties
= Bark and wiher loans [3.991,043)  B:593120) (3,909,320 [k129,621)
Bilances of intesestfree
registeved capital contnbutons
made by joint ventune parines - {1,669, 310| - (1,720,214}
(ehers 133,631} 2345771 {203,450 {240,117}
14,601, B [B.55T, 840 (4,500,7500 (%, 248, 600}
Correnl Liahildies
Current financial habulities
- Haek lnams {355, 183) (13,0001 159,1710 {26, 5080}
= Diviriend payalie (130,742} - - -
- Interest payabie 813 (8,090 (5, 7481 8,293}
(ehers {518,447 (285, 503) (642,097 N (303,281}
{1,007, 185} 302,593 {1,067, Wby (338,075}
el aseots ol point venlures 2,585,209 3630400 1461, 368 3.765,837
Proportion of the Group's insesest 4i'% % 4% 507%
Net assets shareel by the Group 1,208,344 1,815,200 1023544 100616 1LBERON 2490533
Carryng amount of adcitional
cost of imvestments 057,060 16,557 993,637 0,671 16,212 46,803
[moerestfroe registored capital
contribetions made by the
Cromp b amoetised gost 834,655 &34 655 e, 107 860,107
Carrying amoun! of the Group’s
inferests in joint ventunes 3,165,414 206,412 4,551,436 1,008,287 L179.13 4,797,515
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15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint venlures (continued)

Year encied 30 jung K18 §iv maonths enddod 11 Deoember 2018
o3 Gs
Superhighwiy West Superhiphway Wsf
i FKoute IV Total v Route [V Tealal
RMBTO00 RGN KA 00 RMETH0 RME RuER0n
Tol everiue {ned ol
willwe-adided lax) 1,330,300 13260206 1,651,051 734,143
Comssnaition nevenise a7 18 16,206 51,708 (A
Total revenue 3,391,009 342,312 1,702,759 Ta5414
Conssnaction (osls (0,718 {15,286 58,7048) 1.171)
Other income and other expense 133,253 4041 BA,T6T 0,114
Priwision of resartaciag changes (486211 {171,844 119,230} 16,815
Todl expnesmay operation
et {34892 (142 3413 (258,282} (100,262
Ceneral and adminstratve
(o et {78,208) (51,428 62,3300 (27,772
Depreciation arsl gmortisation
charpis {B13.478) (458,402 (413,008} (251,571
Finamce costs {155.374 {313,050 169,944) [143,358]
10 i L exponse (ot [ {508,223 M7 0% (216,189} {58,733
Presfit fow the veariperiod [Mode i) 1 A%0L642 22,371 652,825 186,541
Propostaon of the Group’s interes! 45% 5% 45% %
Prasfit shared by the Group bI0.7EY 146,186 B16,575 24,71 FER 186,42
Paries
[17] Thar amesim ol Imcome was expanses for Wrst Howe |Y repecsent dederned tax (LT

il Prodit for the pertod of G5 Superhighway [V included the amount of RMBTE, 372000 representing, the exchang: loss (net
af related income tax) (year onded 10 june _"LI1H'.1:luch..m3cl gain {rm of related income tash of BAMBS52 376,640

16. Equity Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income/
Investment

The inviestment represents intenest in unlisted limited company established in the PRC. As a1 30 June
2018, it was classified as available-for-sale financial asset and measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the Directors are of the opinion that the fair values cannot be
measured relighly,

Al the date of initlal application of IFRS 9, EMB4,785,000 was reclassified from available-for-sale
investment 1o equity instrument at FYTOCL The Directors have elected to designate the investment in
equity investment as at FYTOC) as they believe that the investment is not held for trading and not
expected 10 be sold in the foreseeable future, The fair value gain net of tix of RMBA, 856,000 relating
to this wnlisted equity investment previously cammed at cost less impaimment was adjusted (o equily
instriment at FVTOC), deferred tax Hahility and investment revaluation reserve as at 1 july 2018
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17. Property and Equipment

Furailire,
Muotor fixtures amd
vehicles equipment Total

RAB T RMEDOD RMB OO0
COST
Asat 1 July 2017 B73 4,616 5,491
Additions - 100 100
Disposalsfweritten off 1536) [127) hihd)
As ot 30 June 2018 337 4,50 4,928
Additions 1,273 o 1,361
As at 31 December 2018 1,610 4,679 6,289
DEPRECIATION
As al 1 July 2017 b5 4,563 5.208
Charge tor the year 38 70 108
Eliminated on disposalswritien off (346) (126) {472}
As at 30 June 2018 17 4,507 4,044
Charge for the poriod 127 27 154
Ag al 31 December 2018 404 4,534 4,998
CARRYING AMOUMNTS
As at 30 June 20018 - B4 4
Asat 31 December 2018 1,146 145 1.2N

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated wseful fives of 3 to 5
years from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the straight-line
method,

18. Dividend and Other Receivables

The following Is an analysis of the dividend and other receivables outstanding at the end of the

reparting period:
0 fune . 31 December
2018 20148
KME QOO0 RME QW
Dividend receivable from a joini venture (MNote) Td, 134 -
Interesl recedivahle 1,715 14
75,849 14

Male: During the six momtbs ended 11 Decembaer 3018, dividend declared by G5 Saperhighway IV e the Cirmip smsianting b
RMBI94, 500,000 fpear endesd 30 Jume D016: RAMRILDI7, 21980000,
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19. Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 Decembor 2018, bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank
balances which carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.001% to 4.39% (30 June 2008: 0.01% o
1O pesr annum,

Analysis of the bank balances and cash of the Group by currency:

30 fearve 31 Dvecember

L00H 2004
RAME ) RAFB D)
RMH B0, 548 4,030
HKD 1] 136,046
United States dollars (*USD*) 5 5
691,401 140,087
20. Share Capital
Mumber MNominal
of shares arrnt
HES DN
Ordanary shares of HE30.1 each
Avithorised:
As ab 1 July 2007, 30 lune 2018 and 11 December 2018 10,000, 000, (0 1, DD, D0
Mumber of shares Momminal amounit
Eqqurivatent (o
HES K RMB 0N
lesued and fully paid:
Asat 1 July 2007, 30 June 2018 and
31 December 200 8 3.061,6590,283 308,169 270,603
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20. Share Capital (continued)

Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved for adoption by the sharcholders of the Company eifective on
22 October 2003 (the “Share Option Scheme®), The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
fur a pericd of ten years and the purpose of which is 1o provide the Company with an alternative
means of giving incentive to rewarding. reemunerating, compensating andfor providing benefits fo (i)
any director, Chief executive or employee (whether full-time or pant-time) of any member of the Group;
(1) any discrctionary abject of a discretionary trust established by any director, chicl executive or
employvee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Group: (i) a company beneficially
awned by any director, chiel executive or emplovee iwhether full-time or part-time) of any member of
the Group; (livl any consultant, professional and other adviser (o any member of the Group or any
consultant, professional and other adviser proposed to be appointed (o any member of the Group
lincluding any of their employecs, pariners, direclors or executives); (vl any associates of any direcior,
Chiel executivie, o substantial shareholder of any member of the Group amd foe such other purposes as
the Board may approve from fime o time, Mo shaee options ander the Share Option Scheme wene
granted, fofelted, vested o outstanding in the years/period prosentod,

Share award scheme

On 25 January 2007, an employees’ share award scheme (the *Share Award Scheme®) was adopted by
the Company. The Share Award Scheme s valid and effective for a period al 15 vears commencing
from 25 January 2007, Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company has set up a
trust, HHI Employess’ Share Award Scheme Trust, for the purpose of administering the Share Award
Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they are vested, There were no awarded shares
granted, foreited, vested o outstanding in the years/period presented,

ANNLAL R FORT 2078

1 123

183/217



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the o reowstfe el 11 Dheowimaberr 008

21. Company’s Statement of Financial Position

30 jurve 3T Decenber

L 2018
RAB 00 RMB O
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Investments in subsidiaries 1,570,678 1,531,917
Amount due from a subsidiary 1,609,532 1,647,638
3,180,210 3,179,555
Current Assels
Dreposits and prepayments 165 A0
Interest and other receivables 1,715 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries 81,964 #3310
Bank balances and cash 90,951 114,778
774,819 200,49
Tolal Assels 3,955,029 3,380,040
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capatal and Reserves
Share capital 270,603 270,603
Share premium and rescrves 3,003,730 2,470,081
3,274,333 2,680,684
Current Liabilities
Payables and accruals 2,580 2,690
DHvidend payable 370,956 -
Amounts due to subsidianes 306, 760 690,672
Taotal Liabilities 60,696 699,362
Total Egquity and Liabilities 3,955,009 A 380,046
Cash and cash equivalents 690,951 114,774
Tianliang ZHANG i LU
Director Director

FIENPESNELL PRIEHAAY IR ASTHLC TLIED LEAITEDY
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21. Company’s Statement of Financial Position (continued)

Company’s Share Premium and Reserves

The Company's reserves available for distribution represant the share premium and retained profits,
Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premmium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends (o shareholders subject 1o the provisions of its
Memiorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of a
dividend, the Company is abde to pay its debt as thoy fall due in the ordinary course of business, In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, divideads can only be distributed out of the
retained prodits and share premium of the Company, As ol 31 December 2008, the Company’'s reserves
available for distribution 1o its sharcholders amounting to RMB2, 780,681,000 (30 june 2018:
KMHE3 439,749,0000, comprising retained profits of RMBE442,992 000 (30 June 2078:
RMB7 22,780,060 and share premivm of RMEZ, 337,689,000 (30 June 2018: RMB2,716,969,000),

Share Transfation Retained
e reserye profits Toatal
RMEB000 RAE T RME 000 BB 000
{Nole)
Asat 1 July 2017 3,104,759 {516,743} 933,826 3,521,842
Prafit and total comprehensive
incame for the vear - - 501,946 501,946
Dividends recogmised as
distribution during the
yiear (Note 13) (387,790 B0, 724 [713,992) 11,020,058
As ab 30 June JOTH 2,716,954 (436,07%) TIL,7R0 FNEE TR0
Profit and fotal comprehensive
incame for the perdod - - 24,657 24657
Dividends recognised as
distribution during the
period (Nowe 13) (379, 280) 65,419 {304,445) (61 8,3006)
Asat 31 December 2018 2437 689 (3706000 442,992 2,410,081

Bl

Before the change kn junctional cumency of the Company fram HKD b BB duting the year eoded 30 June 2000, the exchange
differences recognised in translation reserve epresended the diference betveen the equeity ransactions. aml sceumibated
earmings wamslated o the exchange raves ar the mansaction dases arad the assets and Balilisies wramdased ag the clasing mees ar
thie i al sl reponing perod,

The special final diviceril for the year ended 0 June 2008 of BME1D cems ivear enled 300 june 2018: for the year ended 30
Jume 2017 of RMBIO cents) et share amouniing 1o approximaiely HMEITY 861 000 ivear ended 30 Juss 2018:
AR O, Dl DN wwas alestrshiciiond from i share e arbeom thie tirme burtonm ik fhmﬁn im Fumchional curmancy of the
I'nl.-qmy frevm HEKDY 1o BMB, Ay nu'll:n,!l‘l-,.'J s ahare paresimjum amd (b n:llﬁqmmllnu marskation rewivn ol been debigmd by
RAEITEIB0,000 (W) June J018: BABTET, T90,000) aned crodided by BMBH5. 419,000 (30 June 2OTE; EMERD T 24,000}
MESpRAC Y,
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22, Deferred Tax Liability

The movement of deferred tax liability is as follows:

Fair value
change Tax on
or investment andisteibufed
i eduerly CAFTIIES
instrument of the joint
at Fvrocr vernfures Total
EME D00 FEAE D) RB DN
Asat 1 July 2017 - B0L2TS BO.215
Charge to profit or loss - 41,775 41,775
Release io profit or loss upon payment of
withtholding lax - {52,680) (52,680)
Asat 30 June 2018 = 69,310 b49.310
ﬂpi.:nlng.:_ adjustmems (Note 3) 959 - 959
Asat 1 July 2018 59 69,310 70,269
Charge ta profit or loss - 19,590 19,590
Charge 1o other comprehensive income 83 - B3
Release 1o profit or loss upan payment of
withhalding tax - (20,054) (20,054)
A al 31 December 2018 1,042 BH, A B4 HHH

23. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital (o ensure that entities in the Group will be able (o continue as 3 going
concern while maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance, The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, retained profits and other reserves,

The Directors review the capi1a| structure periodically. As part of this review, the Direclors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with cach class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capatal structure through the issue of new delt or the repayment of existing delbd,

The Directors maonitor the utilisation of bank. loans and ensures full compliance with loan covenants
during the yearperiod.
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24. Financial Instruments
{a) Categories of financial instrumenls

30 fune i1 December

2018 2018
EMEQDMD RMB OO0
Financial assels

Financial assets af amortised cost - 140,101
Loans and recoivables including cash and cash equivalents THh, 300 -
Ecpuity instrument al FYTOCH 11,100
Available-for-sales financial assel 4, TBS -
772,095 151,2M

Financial liahilities
Financial liabilities al amorised cost 376,344 B,975

(b} Fimancial risk management abjectives and policies

The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group®s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, o sel appropriste risk limits and controls o monitor fsks
and adherence to market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all gmployees understand their roles and obligations, The Directors
monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group o ensure
appropdiale measunes are implemented on a timely and effecive mannes,

The Group employs a conservative strategy regarding iis risk management and does ol engage in
trading of any financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for hedging or

speculative purpose,

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure 1o market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures,

(il Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. hence
exposure [0 exchange fluctuation arise, Cerain of the financial assets and financial liabilities
of the Group are denominated in HKD or USD which are currencies other than their
respective functional currencies of the respective group entities, The Group manages ifs
foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates.
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

{h) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the forcign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liahilitios of the Group at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assels Liallities
0 june 3T December 30 june 3T December
208 2ina 2018 2018
RN B N RME Q0D RAE D00 RME 0
usD 5 5 = =
HKD U] 136,046 375,166 5,996

The Group currently does nol have a loreign currency hedging policy in respect of foneign
CUMTENCY BXPOSUre,

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a joint venture is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of RMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a joint
venture as at 31 December 2008, against USD and HKD, The following sensitivity analysis
imcludes currency risk related to USD and HED denominated monetary items of respective
group entities and the joint venfure.

5% is the sensitivity rate wsed when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personne and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes anly outstanding foreign
currency denomanated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in forcign currency rate and all other vanables are held constant.

As al 31 December 2008, the Group (excluding the joint ventures) had monetary assees and
manetary liabdlities denominated in HKE that is nol the functional currency of the relevant
group enfitics (Le. RMB)L I exchange rate of BMB against HKD had boen strengthened/
weakened by 5%, the prafit for the period attributable (o owners of the Company for the
current period would decreasedncrease by RMBGO,503,000 (year ended 300 June 2008:
increase/decrease by RVIB 1S, 7 13,0000,

As ot 31 Decomber 2008, a joint vonture of the Growp had outstanding bank loans and bank
balances denominated in HIKD and USD that are not the functional currency of a joint
veenture (i, BMBL, The foreign currency risk associated with foreign currency borrowid ngs
and bank balances exposed by a joint venture is reflected in the share of results of joint
ventures, If exchange rate of RMEB against HED and USD had been strengthencdfweakened
by 5%, the profit foe the period attribotable o owners of the Company for the current period
wondd increasefdecrease by RME43 417,000 (year ended 30 June 20018 RMBA2 667,000,
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

ib} Financial risk management objectives and policies (contineed)
(i) Inleresl rale sk
The cash flows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to variable rate bank balances
with details as set out in node 19 and the varable rate bank loans and bank balances of its
joint ventures,

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rizsk in relation to certain bank balances, with
ditails a5 ot out in note 19, The management confinees to monitor the fair value interest
rate exposure of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysiz includes only variable fimancial instroments oulstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole period. A 100 basis points. is the
sensitivity rate used when fepoing interest rate risk internally 1o key management personned
and represents management’s assesement of the reasonably possible Change in intenest rates.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group lescluding its joint ventures] are cxposed 1o cash flow
interest rate in relation o the variable rate bank balances: If interest rate had been 100 {year
ended 30 June 2018: 1K) basis points highesflower, the profit for the period aitibutable o
owners of the Company for (he current period would increaseidecrease by RME1, 401,000
dyear ended 30 June 2018; RMEBG,91 5,000),

As Al 31 December 2018, the joint ventures af the Groop are exposed o cash flow inberest
rate risk in relation to the variable rate bank balances and bank loans, 11 interest rate had
heen 100 (year ended 30 June 2018: 100) basis paints higheslower, the profit for the pesiod
altributable o owners of the Company for the current penod would decrease/increase by
RMES2, 006,000 (vear ended 30 June 200 8; RMB44, 708,000,

(iii} Credit risk and impairment assessmaenl
The Group's credif risk is primarily attributable to its dividend and other receivables and
bank balances.

Al 31 December 2008, the Group's maximum exposere o credit risk which will cause a
financial lnss to the Growp die to failure o discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective financial assets as stated in the
consalidated statement of financial position,

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in its dividend receivable from a joint
venlure. The management is responsible to exercise the joint control on the relevant
activities of the joint ventures with a PRC joint venture partner to ensure the joint venfures
maintaining favourable financial position in order to reduce such credit risk,
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

th) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(it} Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Im addition, the management and the respective joint ventures are rosponsible for monitoring
the procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken 1o recover overdue doebts, in order
to minimise other credit risks, The management is also responsible for reviewing the
recoverslde amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting period o ensune that
adequate impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regand, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credil sk is significantly reduced.

The ecredit risks of the Group on liguid funds are limited because the counterparties ane
banks with good reputation.

Other than the abave, the Group has no ofher significant concentration of credie risk,

The table below detail the credil risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, which are
subyject o ECL assessmenls

Gross
External Internal 12-month or CArTYing
F1 December 2018 credil rating credil raling Iifetirme ECL Ao
R BN
Fimancial assets at
amioriised cost:
Bank balances
and cash At s 12-month ECL 140,087

liv) Liguidity risk

The Grouwp’s treasury activities are centralised to achieve betier nisk control and minimise
the cost of funds. Cash is generally placed in bank deposits mostly denominated in RMB.
The management aims to maintain a balance between continuity of adequate funding and
the flexibility throwgh the use of bank and other borrowings, The Group’s liguidity and
financing requirements ane reviewed regulady to mitigate the effects of fuctuations in cash
flows, The management will consider new financing while maintaining appropriafe gearing
ratia,

The carrying amounts of the financial liabilities represent the undiscountod cash lows that
the Group is required to pay and are repayable on demand. All the financial Habilities are
non-inierest bearing,
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group's financial assels thal are measured ai fair value on a recurring
hasis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of cach reporting
period, The following fable gives information about how the faic values of these financial assets
are determined {in particular, the valuation technigquee and inputs used), as well as ihe level of the
farir walue higrarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (fevels 1 (o 3) based
o the degree o which thee inpuls to the fair value measumements s observable,

*  Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or labilities;

*  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are obseevablbe for the asset or liahility, either directly (e, as
pricesh or indirectly (e, dorved irom prices); and

& Lewel 3 fair value measurements are those dedived fiom valuation technigues that include
inputs for the-asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservalile

Inpuish,

Valuton Relatiomdip of
10 e 0 December  Fatr valve fechaser Semnilicant unpbeniable
Fusancid puiets bl MR becaechy  and ey ingul wnodvirable inpuly et 4o i e
[ |
Figaty ingremert NA(Noed  Ulidedequily  level}  Morket Appenach  Priceinearnings muftiples  The higher the multiples,
AFVH imilmenl: of wewtfal corrparable e bihe the e vale

EVEN, 190,000 CompateEy
[reerpese vilee-t-eanings  The higher the multiles,
bakore smderesd, Lanss, the higher the fir vl

deprrcialion ind

amorfration [*FVERITOA"

s of seviral

onitgiable campss
Fnkadumewent e The higher e ducnust,
ddiscounlonlack  the lower the fir vilee

of marketaiby

Ml

L] Wnlisned wipuify investment was e lasailind from availslibes-doraale ivvestmen b evquity Instrument st FYTORC] g the
elates ol Eniglal aﬁ'llh'.:lir-n of [FRS &, 1 july 208

W W b price-lo-sarmings mull*ﬂm it the valuanon model s 5% |'|I|.[hhh'|hwﬁ while 2l the ather varialsdis wse hald
wrenstant, the fair value would increasefdecease by .J|'||1|m|m11rl-‘l5- RMB1ATO000, If the olsk adjrsomant ior a
aliscount o lnck of masketaldlity 1o the valuation model & 5% highelower, while all the other variables wene held
conktani, thie Balr valee would decrsaselisorease by approsimately BB 10,00,
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

{c} Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
The fair values of fimancial assets and financial labilities a1 amortised costs are determined in
accordance with generally sccepted pricing models based on discounted cash o analysis,

The Directors consicler that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial labilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consalidated financial statemonts approximate their fair
values,

25. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 30 junc 20018 and
31 December 2018 which principally affect the results, assets or labilities of the Group as the
Directors are of the opinion that a full st of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length. None of
the subsidiaries had issued any debd securities during the period or at the end of the period.

Atiridbutable  Proportion of
exquily dnferest inding power

Place of Issued and held by held by
Name of subsidiary incexporation fully paid share the Company the Company Principal activity
kingnice BV Linsted British Virgmn Ordfinary dhares 97.5% 100% Brvpsament bobding
sk LSS 20,000
Hopewell Ching Development Hongbong  Oedfinary shanes 9.5% 1INrs [ryesiment in
{Superhighwary) Limiled Hk%2 ol raed PRy peojocl
Noa-voling ardinary
deseried shans shares
HK34
Hopewell Hwﬁm-iﬂur Homg koag Uerhindny shares 1P 1P Irvrsiment in
Soperhighway Developemn| HkS2 of mwed BT projoct
Limmidedd os-voting ordinary
dleferad shares sharrs
HK52
HHI Fardnce Linibed Hang Ko Credingsy share 100 100% Lewin finange:
HK31

Except HHI Finance Limited, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly beld by the Company.

Mone of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year/period.
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26. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

Year Six mowaifs
endid ended
30 June 31 December
Jord 2008
RMBDO0 RMB'0G0
Minimurm lease payments paid under operating leases lor
premises during the year/period 1,271 1,016

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

0 june 21 DPecemhber

2018 2018
RMEB QOO0 RME OGO
Within ane year 1,262 1,052

As al 30 June 2008 and 31 Decomber 2008, leazes wore negotiated for a leaze tivm of one vear with
fixed rentals,

27. Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2008 and 31 December 2008, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment,

28. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes, Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, of future cash ilows will be, classified in the Group®s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash Nows from financing activilies.

Bamk Dividend Interest
loan payable payalle Total
R D00 RME T HATEOU0 RAEO0
Asal 1 July 2007 - - - -
Financing cash flows - (673, B66) - (673,866
Dividend declared - 1,033,496 - 1,033,496
Exchange difference - 11,326 - 11,326
As at 30 June 2018 - 370,956 - 370,956
Financing cash flows ~(Mote] (1,001,242) B6TY  11,001,909)
Dividend declared - 619,405 - A19,405
Interest expense - - [T (17
Exchange difference - 10,881 - 10,581

As at 31 December 2018 - - - =

Mabe: The fimanc ing cash fows of ik loas -nrlu.!lug_ mirw ank locin radeed of BMB265.957 000 ard hank loan rg-|uld al
RMBIHS 957 000 clising thae |!I'|'II|:|.
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29. Related Party Transactions

Dwuring the period from 1 July 2007 ta 3 April 2018, of which Hopewell Holding Limited (*FIFIL™)
ceased to be the ultimate holding company of the Company on 4 April 2018, the Group paid rentals,
air-conditioning, management fee and car parking charges to fellow subsidianes of HHL amaounting 1o
RMET, 100,000,

Compensation of key managemenl personnel
The remuncration of key management personnol who are all Dircctoes is disclosed in note 11,

30. Guarantee

As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised uncommitted banking facilitics of the Company®s wholly-
owned 5uh5idiar-r- of RMB263,389,000 (30 June 2018: RMB253,593,000) are guaranteed by the
Company. The Company is able too control the utilisation of the facilities.

31. Contingent Liability

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2008, a subsidiary of the Company recovered the registered capital ol
HEST 02,000,000 (equivalent to RMBA471,000,0000 previously injecied 1o the G5 Superhighway |V.
According to the Law of the PRC on Chinese-foreign Contractual joint Yenture, in relation to the early
repayment of registered capital to the foreign joint venture partner by the G5 Superhighway |V before
the expiry of the operation period, the subsidiary of the Company, as the foreign joint venture partner,
is required to undertake the financial obligations of the GS Superhighway |V 1o the extent of
HES702, 000,000 when the GS Superhighway |V fails to meet its financial obligations during the joing
wenture opseration perod.

32.Event after the Reporting Period

On 28 February 2019, the Board proposed to change the English name of the Company from
“Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited” o “Shenzhen Invesiment H:;I{Iing'; Bay Arca Development
Company Limited”, and (o adopt the Chinese name of 5030158528 6 08 376 2 807 as the dual foreign
name of the Company in place of its existing Chinese name “& MO HBRTRE 5" ("Change of
Company Name”), Details of Change of Company Name were sef oul in the announcement of (he
Company dated 28 February 2019,

33. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements an pages 83 to 134 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 Febeuary 2019,
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 83 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the six months ended 31 December 2018, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the six months ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs”) and share of results
of JVs — Amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession intangible
assets of the JVs as a key audit matter because
significant judgements are required in determining the
estimation of future traffic volume which has an impact
on the carrying value of the concession intangible
assets of the JVs as at year end and the amortisation
charges for the current and future years. As set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the
two JVs of the Group are engaged in the
development, operation and management of
expressways under service concession agreements
with the right to collect tolls for operating two
expressways in Guangdong Province of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), one of which runs
between Shenzhen and Guangzhou and the other one
links Guangzhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai with the toll
collection periods ranging from 25 years to 30 years.
The Group has accounted for its interests in these JVs
using the equity method of accounting.

As set out in note 5(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, the interests in JVs as at 31 December
2018 amounted to RMB4,797,525,000 and the share
of results of JVs for the six months ended 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB340,188,000.
Included in the share of results of JVs, there was an
amortisation of concession intangible assets of the
JVs shared by the Group amounting to
RMB326,003,000 for the six months ended 31
December 2018 which was calculated based on units-
of-usage basis, i.e. the ratio of actual traffic volume of
the underlying toll expressways for a particular period
over the total expected traffic volume of the underlying
toll expressways over the remaining concession
period of the service concession agreements.

The total expected traffic volume over the remaining
concession period was estimated by the management
with reference to a report prepared by a third party
traffic consultant in a prior year taken into
consideration of various factors such as the annual
growth rate of the traffic volume, the actual traffic
volume in the recent periods, the change of the
transportation network of the region and government
policies relating to the toll expressway operation in the
PRC.

Our procedures in relation to the
amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the two JVs included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and whether
such accounting policy adopted reflects
the consumption pattern of the
concession intangible assets and
benchmarking with other companies in
the same industry;

Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management’s estimation as
mentioned below; and

Comparing the expected traffic volume
estimated by the management in the
past against the actual traffic volume in
previous years and the historical trend
of traffic volume, and then obtaining
reasons for any variances, as well as
evaluating the appropriateness, key
basis and assumptions, including the
annual growth rate of the traffic volume,
the change of the transportation
network of the region and government
policies relating to the toll expressway
operation in the PRC.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs”) and share of results
of JVs — Resurfacing obligations of the JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligation of the JVs as a
key audit matter due to the management’s judgement
involved in determining the amount of provision by
discounted cash flow method which is based on the
number of major resurfacing works to be undertaken
over the concession periods under the service
concession agreements and the expected costs to be
incurred for each event and then discounted to the
present value based on a pre-tax discount rate which
could in turn affect the carrying amount of interests in
joint ventures as at 31 December 2018 and share of
results of joint ventures for the six months ended 31
December 2018 under the equity method of
accounting for the reason stated in the above key
audit matter.

As disclosed in note 5(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the JVs of the Group have contractual
obligations under the contractual service concession
arrangements to maintain the toll expressways to a
specified level of serviceability over the respective
concession periods. These obligations to maintain or
restore the toll expressways, except for upgrade
services, are to be recognised as resurfacing
obligations in the financial statements of the JVs.

As further disclosed in note 5(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interests in JVs as at 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB4,797,525,000 and
share of results of JVs for the six months ended 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB340,188,000.
Included in the interests in JVs, there was a provision
of resurfacing obligations of the JVs shared by the
Group amounting to RMB220,243,000 as at 31
December 2018.

The expected costs for maintenance and resurfacing
and the timing of such event to take place involve
estimates made by the management of the Group,
which were taken into consideration of the resurfacing
plans of the JVs, historical costs incurred for similar
activities and the latest quotations f rom the service
provider. These expected costs were then discounted
to the present value based on a discount rate
determined by the management of the Group that
reflected the time value of the money and the risk
specific to the obligation.

Our procedures in relation to evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JVs included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key bases and
assumptions made by management in
estimating the obligations;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing works
and the number of major resurfacing
works to be undertaken over the
remaining concession period based on
the technical report prepared by the
engineering department of the JVs and
the actual costs incurred for resurfacing
works in recent periods;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
discount rate and the timing for
discounting used by the management
with reference to the borrowing rate of
the JVs; and

Evaluating the projected traffic volume
projection based on procedures
performed in the key audit matter
related to the amortisation on
concession intangible assets of the JVs
as mentioned above which is used for
determining the amount of resurfacing
expense to be charged to profit or loss
in the respective reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor
's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 February 2019
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